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To ensure sustainable development of the Hong Kong travel industry that drives
economic growth and promotes the image of Hong Kong

oy

fs 6
MISSION

SR EEREEERFERATUREREEEN S TUEEEFRANLELE

To encourage and regulate travel enterprises and trade practitioners to conduct
business and activities in a responsible and professional manner
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The Government of the
Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region
(the Government)
issued a consultation
paper on the review
of the operation and regulatory framework of Hong
Kong's tourism sector, and invited views from the trade
and the public.

12 H December
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The Government announced that a new statutory
regulatory body of the travel industry to be named as
the Travel Industry Authority (TIA) would be set up for
regulating travel agents, tourist guides and tour escorts
with a view to promoting the professionalism of the
industry.

11 A November
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The Travel Industry Ordinance (the Ordinance) was
passed by the Legislative Council which provides a
legal basis for the establishment of TIA. The Ordinance
sets out the composition and functions of TIA.
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The Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region appointed Mr MA Ho-fai, GBS,
JP as Chairperson of the first term of TIA and 28
persons as ordinary members of TIA with effect from 1
January 2020.

1 B January
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TIA was established and its first meeting was held in
the same month to discuss issues relating to its future
work plan, governance framework, etc.

8 A August
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The office of TIA located in Wong Chuk Hang came
into operation.

12 H December
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The website of TIA (https://tia.org.hk/) was launched.
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TIA published a consultation document on the
implementation details of the new regulatory regime
under the Ordinance on 9 February 2022. The
views of the practitioners, organisations and relevant
stakeholders of the travel industry were collected
through an eight-week trade consultation which
ended on 5 April 2022. TIA published the consultation
summary, putting forward concrete and feasible
proposals as well as follow-up actions.

4 B April
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Representatives of TIA presented the proposal of
subsidiary legislation made for the full implementation
of the new regulatory regime of the travel industry at
the meeting of the Panel on Economic Development,
Legislative Council held on 25 April 2022.
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The Government gazetted seven pieces of subsidiary
legislation made for the full implementation of the new
regulatory regime on 6 May 2022. Of which, the Travel
Industry Ordinance (Commencement) Notice 2022
appointed 4 July 2022 as the implementation day for
the provisions of the Ordinance related to transition, and
1 September 2022, as the implementation day for the
remaining provisions that were not yet in operation. The
seven pieces of subsidiary legislation were tabled in the
Legislative Council for negative vetting on 11 May 2022.

9 H September
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The new regulatory regime of the travel industry has
been implemented from 1 September 2022, and TIA
has also come into full operation.
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The Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism
appointed the Consumer Relations Panel of TIA, which
consists of 18 members.

11 A November
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The Government earmarked $100 million to support
the training and development of travel industry
practitioners. TIA has made use of part of the
resources to launch a three-year training subsidy
scheme for practitioners of the travel industry, with
a view to enhancing the professional standards and
service quality of the travel industry.
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“For three years, the travel industry around the world has been frozen due to the pandemic.

| believe now is the best time to relaunch Hong Kong’s travel industry and promote its
innovation and development so that residents and tourists alike can rediscover the city from a
new perspective and enjoy professional and comprehensive travel services and experiences.”
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Mr MA Ho-fai, GBS, JP
Chairperson
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Working together towards new
milestones and prospects

As the COVID-19 pandemic gradually subsides and becomes part
of our past, different regions in Asia have successively relaxed their
quarantine measures and reopened for entry. The travel industry’s
long-awaited retumn to normalcy has also begun in an orderly manner.
Before the Government announced the relaxation of the travel
restrictions, the Travel Industry Ordinance (Cap. 634) (the Ordinance)
and its subsidiary legislation came into full effect in September 2022,
and the new regulatory regime for the travel industry was officially
implemented and began operation. In addition, TIA has taken up great
responsibilities in fulfiling its ambitious vision and mission.

To strengthen collaboration and communication at all levels, from
bill consultation to implementation of the Ordinance, TIA has invited
representatives from the travel industry and various stakeholders
to discuss and consult on the new regulatory regime and each of
its works and measures. Collecting views from the travel trade and
various stakeholders enabled TIA to understand the industry’s actual
situation and needs comprehensively before implementing relevant
work details. TIA comprises 30 members from travel trade and non-
trade representatives of various other professional fields to ensure
a sufficient voice for the trade while also considering the views
from diverse sectors such as legal, accounting, finance, insurance,
education, and consumer affairs. TIA conducts all meetings and
makes decisions on the principles of fairness, impartiality, and
openness. It carries out its work in strict compliance with the
Ordinance and its subsidiary legislation, where the laws prevail,

‘Regulation” is only one of the statutory functions performed by TIA.
Our vision is to ensure the sustainable development of the Hong
Kong travel industry that drives economic growth and promotes the
image of Hong Kong. For three years, the travel industry around the
world has been frozen due to the pandemic. | believe now is the
best time to relaunch Hong Kong's travel industry and promote its
innovation and development so that residents and tourists alike can
rediscover the city from a new perspective and enjoy professional
and comprehensive travel services and experiences. As the Hong
Kong travel industry grows further, it is vital for the trade to make
corresponding adjustments towards industry culture, operational
mentality, and professional attitude in order to adapt to the new post-
pandemic global travel patterns and trends.

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 7
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Embracing views and feedback and
encouraging innovative development

First of all, we have to inspire new thinking, innovate, and keep
pace with or even lead the latest travel trends in Hong Kong. For
example, the Government has advocated cultural and heritage
tourism as a breakthrough for Hong Kong's travel industry. Secondly,
we have to enhance our value through new techniques. In the era
of the metaverse and WEB 3.0, we expect an increasing number
of travellers will choose to purchase travel products and service
packages via online channels. In light of this, TIA has launched a
Series of activities, which include information seminars for trade,
briefing sessions on recognised Continuing Professional Development
activities for tourist guides and tour escorts, and webinars to introduce
the e-levy system and more, to equip practitioners of the trade with
and further consolidate their knowledge on the industry’s development
and enhance their overall competitiveness, professionalism, and
service quality. Furthermore, the trade also needs to strengthen its
professional image. In particular, frontline practitioners must possess
useful and appropriate information with good presentation and
communication skills so as to contribute to the development of Hong
Kong's travel industry in the long run.

The sustainable and healthy development of Hong Kong's travel
industry can only be driven by leaving tourists a positive impression.
For this purpose, we encourage the trade to pursue continuing
education. In addition to licensing courses, we offer travel-related
programmes and activities on various topics to respond to the trade’s
demands, including courses on understanding the Ordinance and
online seminars on travel health. We are committed to promoting
the industry’'s development and professionalism and facilitating
the exchange of information and knowledge within the industry. To
effectively establish the industry’s professional image, we have been
actively communicating and collaborating with various government
departments, organisations, and stakeholders, and we conducted
joint seminars to further enhance the awareness of the trade in
maintaining a strict and professional service image. During the year,
TIA has also participated in a few exchange activities organised
by the tourism bureaux and travel-related organisations in cities
like Guangdong, Hong Kong, Macau, and other regions. All these
activities provide us with an opportunity to understand more about the
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global tourism market trends and promote the new regulatory regime
of the travel industry and the professionalism and service quality of
Hong Kong's travel industry. At this moment, we endeavour to initiate
direct dialogues with relevant tourism units and organisations in the
Mainland to facilitate closer ties and exchanges between the two
sides.

Sustainable tourism development is a long journey. We are grateful for
all the tremendous support and collaboration from the Government's
departments and organisations, especially the Tourism Commission,
which has fully supported and facilitated our work relentlessly
since the establishment of TIA. We are also thankful for the active
participation of the trade and stakeholders. Their views have helped
TIA to understand the need for trade development better. | would also
like to pay tribute to all the TIA members for their selfless dedication
in time and hard work despite their many public services and duties
and have offered us valuable advice while attending TIA meetings
and participating in the decision-making process. Finally, | express my
heartfelt gratitude to all TIA's colleagues for their perseverance, hard
work, and team spirit, which are vital in driving the development of TIA
and Hong Kong's travel industry.

Returning to normalcy and implementing a new regulatory regime
embody a new milestone and chapter in the history of Hong Kong's
travel industry development. Adhering to professionalism and
hospitality, | firmly believe that Hong Kong's travel industry can usher
in a bright future. We look forward to working with the travel trade,
practitioners of the travel trade, and the general public to develop a
sustainable and healthy travel industry.

7

MA Ho-fai, GBS, JP
Chairperson
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“As a statutory regulatory organisation, our job is not only to regulate, but more

importantly, to work hand-in-hand with Hong Kong’s travel industry to strive for excellence
and promote its sustainable development.”
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Ms Annie FONDA
Executive Director
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Positive progress through open and
honest exchanges

This year was a very important year for TIA, and 1 September 2022
marked a very significant milestone for the travel industry in Hong
Kong. With the full implementation of the Travel Industry Ordinance
(Cap. 634) (the Ordinance) and its subsidiary legislation, the new
regulatory regime came into effect. TIA is able to fully embrace its role
in supporting the industry's development by discharging its statutory
functions and law enforcement powers as conferred by or under the
Ordinance. Thanks to the support of the Government and members
of the community, and the collective efforts of the trade and TIA staff,
we smoothly transitioned into our new role, including taking over the
licensing and regulatory duties of the Travel Agents Registry and the
Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong (TIC) orderly, and managing
various [T operating systems and large volumes of data records and
archives.

The implementation of the new regulatory regime has not merely
been an internal matter of TIA. It is also an important development
that has been widely concerned by all sectors of the community, who
are unfamiliar with the changes it entails. As such, communication
has been a top priority for us during the transition to the new regime,
especially serving as a liaison with the travel trade. Leading up to the
enacting of the relevant subsidiary legislation, TIA engaged in eight
weeks of trade consultation from 9 February through 5 April 2022,
This process gathered feedback from travel industry practitioners,
licensed travel agents, organisations, and other stakeholders while
actively addressing their concerns and responding to questions about
the new regulatory regime. During the year, | also personally chaired
a series of face-to-face and online focus groups that allowed me to
have a direct dialogue with travel agents, tourist guides, tour escorts
and industry stakeholders in order to understand the industry’s needs
and explore innovative and effective ways to enhance the service
quality and reputation of Hong Kong's travel industry. In response
to the needs identified in these discussions, we launched a range
of continuous professional development courses for licences and
training subsidy schemes for practitioners of the travel trade. We
have also been in collaboration with the Vocational Training Council to
organise full-time pre-examination training courses for tourist guides
and tour escorts of one year or above, and appointed TIC to organise
short-term courses and licensing examinations for tourist guides and

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
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tour escorts. In addition, we have partnered with organisations such
as the Hong Kong Red Cross, the Hong Kong Society of Professional
Medical Care, and the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance to offer first
aid training and other professional certificate courses to enhance
the overall standard of the travel industry as well as to expand the
wealth of knowledge and skills required by the trade practitioners.
As a statutory regulatory organisation, our job is not only to regulate,
but more importantly, to work hand-in-hand with Hong Kong’s
travel industry to strive for excellence and promote its sustainable
development.

Growth and development through
communication

In terms of internal communication, we understand that our talent is
fundamental to realising our mission and vision. We are grateful that
our colleagues have been able to carry out our work smoothly and
successfully since the establishment of TIA and the implementation
of the new regulatory regime. To promote teamwork and strengthen
our talent pool, we have been organising regular internal training
and networking activities such as seminars and events for staff.
In November 2022, we engaged a human resources consulting
company to review the current employee salary and benefits
packages, as well as the performance evaluation mechanism. This
review will help us align and formulate policies to ensure that we can
attract and retain top talent effectively now and in the future.

When it comes to external communication, we attach great
importance to the role of public and media relations in promoting
the establishment of TIA and its main functions to ensure a more
comprehensive and in-depth understanding of the new regulatory
regime among travel industry and society as a whole. Since the
implementation of the new regulatory regime, we have further
strengthened our publicity efforts in targeted areas, including the
launch of official local and mainland social media accounts and
pages. In addition, we are actively preparing to launch a series of
diversified promotion and publicity programmes in phases covering
various channels, including the production of thematic promotional
videos and TV announcements in the public interest (APIs) that target
different groups of audiences and individuals. These efforts will not
only promote TIA as a respected authority in travel regulation, but also
enhance the positive image of Hong Kong's travel industry in general.
Qur first APl is set for release in the first half of 2023.
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Looking forward to new opportunities

As the travel industry gradually retums to normal, we expect to face
more new challenges. With quarantine measures further relaxed in
December 2022, and normal travel between Hong Kong and the
Mainland resumed in February 2023, TIA has enhanced frontline
services like our public enquiry hotline and strengthened inspections
at tourist attractions and registered shops under the Administrative
Scheme for Registered Shops for Inbound Tour Groups in order to
combat the illegal activities such as coerced shopping. On the other
hand, we have explored and deployed various coordination measures
in advance to further support the industry’s healthy and long-term
development. During the year, an array of initiatives was launched to
provide appropriate support for the travel industry, including a training
subsidy scheme for practitioners of the travel trade and streamlined
training courses for foreign-language speaking tourist guides. We
also proactively worked with the trade to prepare for the upcoming
challenges anticipated for the Golden Week in May 2023, so as
to embrace the first major opportunity and new challenge after the
gradual resumption of the travel industry.

Our success to date has taken years of collaborative work, from
drafting subsidiary legislation and conducting trade consultations
to enacting the relevant ordinances, establishing a regulatory bodly,
reforming a regime, and transforming an industry. We consider that
the new regulatory regime is just a beginning. The real challenge
that lies ahead of us is the reactivation of the travel industry after
the pandemic. As a new regulatory body, maintaining full, clear
communication and strengthening ties with the trade is the key
to establishing our recognition and credibility. Moving forward, we
will continue to engage with all sectors of society and the trade to
understand their views and needs. We will also strike a balance
between performing regulatory functions and responding to the
industry’s current situation and demands. Through our collective
efforts, we endeavour to drive the prosperous development of the
travel industry of Hong Kong.

Annie FONDA
Executive Director
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About TIA

Established in January 2020, TIA is a statutory regulatory body of
the travel industry established under the Ordinance. It is primarily
responsible for the licensing and regulation of travel agents, tourist
guides and tour escorts; and is devoted to deterring and combatting
malpractices of the travel industry.

Since the full implementation of the new regulatory regime of the
travel industry on 1 September 2022, TIA took over the licensing and
trade regulatory functions from the Travel Agents Registry and the
Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong respectively. Under the new
regulatory regime, travel agents, tourist guides and tour escorts are
required to comply with the Ordinance and its subsidiary legislation,
the Directives for Licensees, codes of conduct as well as guidelines
issued by TIA.

Apart from discharging its regulatory functions, TIA is also committed
to enhancing the integrity, competence and professionalism of
the travel industry practitioners and collaborates with different
training institutions to provide various types of seminars and
training programmes in order to promote the healthy and long-
term development of the industry. In addition, TIA regulates shops
that inbound tour groups are arranged to patronise through an
Administrative Scheme for Registered Shops for Inbound Tour Groups
(Administrative Scheme). It is also responsible for managing the Travel
Industry Compensation Fund (TICF) which provides protection for
eligible outbound travellers purchasing outbound packages.
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Statutory Functions

TIA is a statutory regulatory body established under section 150 of
the Ordinance. lts major functions are:

)

To promote the integrity, competence and professionalism of
travel agents, tourist guides and tour escorts;

To regulate shops that inbound tour groups are arranged to
patronise in relation to that patronage;

To advise the Government on matters relating to the regulation
of travel agents, tourist guides and tour escorts;

To receive and process applications for licences;

To issue, renew, amend, revoke and suspend licences;

To impose licence conditions that it considers appropriate;
To hold, manage and apply TICF; and
(Without limiting the above paragraphs) to perform any function

conferred on TIA by or under the Ordinance or any other
Ordinance.
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Membership of TIA

TIA comprises 30 members, including a Chairperson, a Vice-
chairperson (the Commissioner for Tourism), and not more than
28 ordinary members from the trade and non-trade sectors. The
Chairperson and the ordinary members of TIA are appointed by the
Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in
accordance with the Ordinance, with a term of two years in general.

To enable TIA to have a balanced representation from a broad
spectrum of the trade, its trade members are individuals who are
engaged in inbound or outbound travel agent businesses, tourist
guides, tour escorts, or members of the Board of Directors of
the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. lts non-trade members
come from various sectors, and with their professional expertise
and extensive experience in the fields of law, accountancy, finance,
insurance, education, consumer affairs or general administration,
their advice to TIA would be invaluable and would help TIA effectively
gauge views from outside the travel trade and to assist its discharge
of various functions.
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MEMBERSHIP OF TIA (as at 31 MARcH 2023)

ESIESRSE GBS, JP
Mr MA Ho-fai, GBS, JP

EBEZ LT JP
Ms Vivian SUM Fong-kwang, JP

BAERZt
Ms Dilys CHAU Suet-fung

MERHEE
Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay

o &E5kEBBS, JP
Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
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ZREFEEIP
Mr Johnny LEUNG Ka-kui, JP

=Mk EBBS, JP
Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, BBS, JP

SEEREE - MH
Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit, MH

ZFEERESBS, JP
Mr Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP

RSt
Ms Kerry CHING Kim-wai

1)
®
13/
14/
©

BEEMBRL
Mrs Gianna HSU WONG Mei-lun

M RZES MH
Hon Perry YIU Pak-leung, MH

=AMzt
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

HHE X5 EBBS, MH, JP
Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP

B#HELTMH
Ms Agnes CHOI Heung-kwan, MH
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WRFERLL
Mrs Ann TANG YU Li-hua

REFRFEMH
Mr Paul LEUNG Yiu-lam, MH

[EEEE
Mr James TONG Wai-pong

Mr Ricky TSE

ZEBELL
Ms Lanny LEUNG Kong-lan

®© 6 6 0 6

ESl
Dr Barry MAK Lui-ming

ISR STE
Mr Tommy TAM Kwong-shun

REL
Dr Priscilla POON Chau-min

HEREE
Mr WONG Ka-ngai

BiEx kst
Mr Martin MA Yuk-man

EFBREE
Mr Kenneth KING Yue-kin

FERIFBEE MH
Mr Roy LO Kai-pong, MH

ML &L BBS, JP
Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, BBS, JP

BHEERE
Mr TSE Yun-sang

©O 0 0 6

MBS L IP
Mr Victor LAM Hoi-cheung, JP

(&)

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

21



S A GBS, JP
Mr MA Ho-fai, GBS, JP

N

EE
Chairperson

HETERMITEREBA

Senior Partner, Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

FEZERAEAGEERARERE
President, Association of China-
Appointed Attesting Officers Limited

EAEME R ORI ERFE

Vice Chairman, Basic Law Institute

BEXFREESZESTR
Chairman, Protection of Wages on
Insolvency Fund Board

22 REREER FiR 2022-23

BB L - JP

Ms Vivian SUM Fong-kwang,
JP

BlxE

Vice-chairperson

LB B Rk R REEHEE

Commissioner for Tourism, Culture,
Sports and Tourism Bureau

REEmE LT
Mrs Gianna HSU WONG
Mei-lun

Member

RMRERR D R EERALE
Director & General Manager, Towa
Tours Ltd

RFEEEENRELAZESES
Member, Advisory Committee on Cruise
Industry of Tourism Commission

BREFSSEE (REZRBS4E)
(2021-2026)

Member, Election Committee (Tourism
Subsector) (2021-2026)

EBABAREFRELHEERAA
KERBER

Permanent Honorable Chairman,
Hong Kong Japanese Tour Operators
Association Ltd

BRRERRRKE

Member, Hong Kong Tourism Board

B ERERRR MRS
Member, Tourism Strategy Group of
Tourism Commission

BEREEXZRS TR
Chairman, Travel Industry Council of
Hong Kong

BT EEIEAEEEES
Member, Travel Industry Training
Advisory Committee

AIEBZMNPFEE R (2009-2010)
Ex-President, Hong Kong Asia Lions
Club (2009-2010)

AIEBEMREHEERD R ERE
(1995-1997, 1999-2001, 2003-2005)
Ex-Chairman, The Federation of Hong
Kong Chinese Travel Agents Ltd (1995-
1997, 1999-2001, 2003-2005)



DFERILAE
Mr Kenneth KING Yue-kin

(fEHAER 2023 F 1 A6 BBER © )
(Appointment effective from 6 January 2023.)

Member

Expedia RSB AR KB EERHAR

Pl

Regional Director, Retail Partnerships
APAC, Expedia Group

RAEBEL L
Ms Lanny LEUNG Kong-lan

Member

BRKZHREER D AESRITHRAR
Director & CEO, Hong Kong Wing On
Travel Service Co Ltd

RTREBHAZEEERE
Member, Adwsory Committee on Travel
Agents

BETEREHRSERLARESR
Vice Chairman, Hong Kong Association
of China Travel Organisers Ltd

BB EREXERR MRS
Member, Tourism Strategy Group of
Tourism Commission

MERTHREIBAEESES
Member, Travel Industry Training
Advisory Committee
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Mr Paul LEUNG Yiu-lam, MH

Member

MRATHE R AR A B ESAKE
Managing Director, Holiday World
Tours Ltd

BEZERERARERRBEXEZER
BEEEEZEE

Member, Catering & Hospitality Services
Safety & Health Committee of
Occupational Safety & Health Council

BRRTHGEERARNHNTEESSE

Executive Committee Member, Hong
Kong Association of Travel Agents Ltd

EBARRERGHEERARERE
Chairman, Hong Kong Inbound Travel
Association Ltd

BEIRBEE « RRRIRIEEI IREES
E3=]

Member, Hotel, Catering and Tourism
Training Board of Vocational Training
Council

ShEMRRRERIRR
Honorary Vice Chancellor, Social
Enterprise Research Academy
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ERRARAE - MH
Mr Roy LO Kai-pong, MH

Member

BBERTHEERARES

Director, Million Tour Limited

BEFEEZE (RERABDAE)
(2021-2026)

Member, Election Committee (Tourism
Subsector) (2021-2026)

BEABERTHEHERIERE
Vice Chairman, Hong Kong Inbound
Tour Operators Association

B RIRITIEE XA SRS
Director, Hong Kong Taiwan Tourist
Operators Association

EBIRESEB AT
Chairman, Hong Kong Travel Profession
Union

BEREXEE R ERE

Honorary Treasurer, Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong
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S e
Mr Martin MA Yuk-man

Member

TR ES AR
General Manager, Tour Bank (HK)
Travel Ltd

BREBEFESEFE (RERRLS4A)
(2021-2026)

Member, Election Committee (Tourism
Subsector) (2021-2026)

BRTEREHBSARIAEESER
Vice President, Hong Kong Association
of China Travel Organisers Ltd

EREEBAGSERATNEESER
Honorary President, International
Chinese Tourist Association Ltd

FEARBGGHEERET=EEMNE
ZE882%E8

Committee Member, the 13th Term of
Jilin Province of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference

AIZEIRBEE - 8RR RAREEZEFIAR
ZEE%S (2017-2019)

Former Member, Hotel, Catering and
Tourism Training Board of Vocational
Training Council (2017-2019)

TERHIE LT
Dr Priscilla POON Chau-min

Member

tHEREEARARDKEES
Associate Director, Olympic Consultants
Limited

BREMEEGEEER
Vice Chairman, Hong Kong Association
of Registered Tour Co-ordinators

BREAEARESEREFECEHRRIN
FEE

External Examiner, Li Ka Shing School
of Professional and Continuing
Education of Hong Kong Metropolitan
University

BRABEREEB T EEM
Adjunct Lecturer, School of Professional
and Continuing Education of The
University of Hong Kong

AR BIREXZSRE NI IREXERE
FEEEENEHEE (2014-2015)

Former Member, Formation of Travel
Industry Qualification Framework Task
Force of Travel Industry Council of Hong
Kong (2014-2015)

AIEBIRERRERSREE
(2009-2011)

Former Senior Manager, Hong Kong
Tourism Board (2009-2011)



B TR
Mr Tommy TAM Kwong-shun

Member

MERERRARESRLE

Managing Director, Arrow Travel
Agency Ltd

BREFEEFE (RERRAR24)
(2021-2026)

Member, Election Committee
(Tourism Subsector) (2021-2026)

B HE R RTEEEARLA
Edz

Chairman, Society of IATA Passenger
Agents Ltd

E\%Eﬁﬁinﬁamufﬁ
Deputy Chairman, Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong

BRAELL T

Mrs Ann TANG YU Li-hua
Member
EEEXEBATEXE

Chairman, Hong Kong Professional
Tourist Guides General Union

BT RBEERREE=F MRS
Committee Member, Tripartite
Committee for Hotel and Tourism
Industry of Labour Department

ARXEZERERRRERKERZ S
REEZSSRIERFE (2016-2019)
Former Vice Chairman, Catering &
Hospitality Services Safety & Health
Committee of Occupational Safety &
Health Council (2016-2019)

ARBEAREEZEREFEEENHEA
ZEEME (2012-2018)

Former Member, Endangered Species
Advisory Committee of Agriculture,
Fisheries and Conservation Department
(2012-2018)

BEBREXEELSIEER
(2018-2019)

Former Vice Chairman, Hong Kong
Tourism Industry Employees General
Union (2018-2019)
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sheiE Rkt
Mr Ricky TSE

Member

ENE B R AR B & 8 RIRPI AL IE
Country Manager - Hong Kong & Macau,
Ministry of Tourism and Creative
Economy, Republic of Indonesia

Bl BREAEIR A R EFERTEAR
President and CEO, United Holidays
Company Limited

BERARERTIHEHEAEER
Founding President, Hong Kong Inbound
Tour Operators Association

BEBIMNERTERERHEFRA A
HITEE

Executive Committee, Hong Kong
Outbound Tour Operators’ Association
Ltd

EREBREHBEARDAERE
Chairman, The Federation of Hong Kong
Chinese Travel Agents Ltd

BRREXEEEERE

Deputy Chairman, Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong
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AEE A
Mr TSE Yun-sang

Member

B8 (EF) SBERTEXFE
Chairman, Hong Kong (Chinese) Tour
Guides General Union

BRBARERTHLIHEES
Executive Committee, Hong Kong
Inbound Tour Operators Association

BRREEXBTIEER
Chairman, Hong Kong Tourism
Industries General Union

EREMEHREERARNTES
Executive Committee Member, The
Federation of Hong Kong Chinese Travel
Agents Ltd

IREREER F) 2022-23

EHEREA
Mr WONG Ka-ngai

Member

EREBRETEEER
Chairman, Hong Kong Tour Guides
General Union

BEZ2RERARRERREXZZR
BREZEEZEES

Member, Catering & Hospitality Services
Safety & Health Committee of
Occupational Safety & Health Council

BEBEIRRERBIEXEARGES
Member, Industry Consultative Network
of Tourism and Hotel of Employees
Retraining Board

BN IHEHEEREESES
Member, Standing Committee of The
Federation of Hong Kong & Kowloon
Labour Unions

BIRAERREE=FH/NEAKRE
Committee Member, Tripartite
Committee for Hotel and Tourism
Industry of Labour Department

HBRZES - MH
Hon Perry YIU Pak-leung, MH

Member

EBFERITHERATDESRE
Chairman, China Travel Service (HK) Ltd

FLELEEERES (RER)
Member (Tourism), The 7th Legislative
Council

ERTEREGEERAAZEER
Honorary President, Hong Kong
Association of China Travel Organisers
Ltd

BEREFEHEERA =B EREE
Honorary Adviser, The Federation of
Hong Kong Chinese Travel Agents Ltd

EBREXESEESHES
Observer, Travel Industry Council of
Hong Kong Board of Directors

RBRTRENBAZEEES
Member, Travel Industry Training
Advisory Committee



BAZER 2+
Ms Dilys CHAU Suet-fung

Member

ZXREKRA

Partner, Ernst & Young

BEERHBERES
Director, The Hong Kong Academy for
Gifted Education

BERPEEKERZESRFER
EZEERE

Member, Process Review Panel for the
Securities and Futures Commission

EREAEBEEERE
Member, Radio Television Hong Kong
Board of Advisors

AEEFERRERGEREZEESES
Member, Standing Commission on
Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service

BERENHERMAEKEEEEE
Member, Standing Committee on
Language Education and Research of
the Education Bureau

FRIZX L
Ms Kerry CHING Kim-wai

Member

ROEBEEEEEREEERAREEERE
THER

CEQ, Hong Kong of Amundi Hong Kong
Limited

ERFLEROTFHTES
Non-Executive Director, HKMC Annuity
Limited

EBREESAGTHREEEKE
Executive Committee Member, Hong
Kong Investment Funds Association

RIBEH LFERE LFEEERE
Panel Member, Insurance Appeals
Tribunal

BHERNEERERZESRFER
ZEEHE

Member, Process Review Panel for the
Securities and Futures Commission
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HBEZL * MH

Ms Agnes CHOI Heung-kwan,

MH
Member

EBEHASEEEEIKE

Lay Member, the Council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

REBEEERFHNITES
Non-Executive Director, Insurance
Authority

B PR R AR B e ER R MK 3R
Asia Ambassador, International Union
of Marine Insurance

FIEIBEMEREHEHTEESES
(2015-2018)

Former Member, Executive Committee
of the International Union of Marine
Insurance (2015-2018)

RIEBRIREREEF (2012-2013)
Former Chairman, Hong Kong
Federation of Insurers (2012-2013)

AEBSEEONRRERIMSEER
FJE (2018-2022)

Former Chairman, Promotion and
External Relations Committee of Hong
Kong Maritime and Port Board (2018-
2022)



el AE » MH
Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit, MH

Member

B S NEL:]

Barrister-at-law

R R &

President, Hainan International
Arbitration Court

LREEE (HEEH) RE
Member, Appeal Boards Panel
(Education)

AHEERERRETEESREERE
Vice-chairperson, District Fight Crime
Committee (Tai Po District)
BEZESEE CEERARR24A)
(2021-2026)

Member, Election Committee (Legal
Subsector) (2021-2026)

EREMBERANERBBESSERE
Member, Hong Kong Arts Development
Council, and Chairman, Review
Committee

RUEZHEBREEEZEE
Member, Long-term Prison Sentences
Review Board

HEEFAESEERESEEE

Member, Management Committee of
the Consumer Legal Action Fund

HEITEETMBERE
Member, Social Workers Registration
Board

ééﬁfiﬁ SEPERNMZEER

Member, Subsidised Housing Committee
of the Hong Kong Housing Authority

PEARBUGAHEEHREN\EEEE
ZESEKZEE

Standing Committee Member, the
8th Session of the Hainan Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference

EFEBREEBEZEE
Member, Youth Development
Commission
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EHA%LE  BBS, JP
Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, BBS,
JP

Member

DEEEREERATES
Director, AVEC Consultants Company
Limited

BMRRFBZANEERZEE
Member, Advisory Committee on Arts
Development

Sk T BIZEEERE
Chairman, Committee on Venue
Partnership

BEMEREHEEEEESHESTME

Non-offlual Member, Constitution and
Basic Law Promotion Steering
Committee

REBRIMER

Deputy Secretary General, Democratic
Alliance for the Betterment and
Progress of Hong Kong

HMAHEERRETEEEZES
Member, District Fight Crime Committee
(Yau Tsim Mong District)

EEEERZESIEHZE

Non-official Member, Hong Kong
Housing Authority

ANERREEZEEES
Member, Human Resources Planning
Commission

MENE LA - JP

Mr Victor LAM Hoi-cheung,
JP

Member

KAMBHEARA RBLE
General Manager, Forward Winsome
Industries Ltd

REAEESHEAAZEREE
Member, Advisory Committee on
Corruption of Independent Commission
Against Corruption

HEBEEZESEZES

Member, Consumer Council

BEFESEEE (FR () ABlH4A)
(2021-2026)

Member, Election Committee
(Commercial (first) Subsector)
(2021-2026)

BREBHES

Member, Guangdong Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference

ERRMBRREEREEAREEEES
%8

Member, Promotion and International

Affairs Committee of Hong Kong Brand
Development Council

AEEFERBRBEGHEREEEES
Member, Standing Commission on
Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service

BOERLBEEREEERE
Member, Standing Committee on Young
Offenders

ITXESHAREEHENREE

Non-official Member, Trade and
Industry Advisory Board
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Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay

Member

EBEMBRAKE
Member, Hong Kong Arts Development
Council

BEBBITHEITREZKE « LEE
RERBAZEHEEEIERIES
=§24-1

Member, Independent Commission on
Remuneration for Members of the
Executive Council and the Legislature,
and Officials under the Political
Appointment System of the HKSAR

BERRIITHEEBREREFEBE L
EZEERE

Member, Independent Commission on
Remuneration for the Members of the
District Councils of the HKSAR

BEBELAReRENMEEEEE
Member, Investment Subcommittee of
The Community Chest of Hong Kong

BEEEBEETERENEZEEEHNE
Member, Marketing and
Communications

Committee of Hong Kong Football
Association

BEEEBESRER

Advisor, Our Hong Kong Foundation

BBRRITHE B R ARFER RS
BEREEEES

Member, Standing Committee on
Directorate Salaries and Conditions of
Service of the HKSAR

RREFTE - JP
Mr Johnny LEUNG Ka-kui, JP

Member

RRMEMITERA
Partners, Solicitor, Johnny K.K. Leung
& Co

BEEREEERLABYIFATES
Independent Non-executive Director,
Ban Loong Holdings Limited

NEREEEERARBLIHNTES
Independent Non-executive Director,
Celestial Asia Securities Holdings Ltd

B EDEREREARA
China Appointed Attesting Officer

BUFR AT A
Notary Public
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ZFERRLAE 0 SBS, JP
Mr Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS,
JP

Member

PEEBREERARES
Director, Fred Consultancy Company
Ltd

NEBMZBMELFREEENE
Member, Private Columbaria Appeal
Board

AISEEZE (1991-1997, 1998-2012)
Former Legislative Council Member
(1991-1997, 1998-2012)



BB
Dr Barry MAK Lui-ming

Member

BRMEARESERETEERER
b

Associate Professor, Lee Shau Kee
School of Business and Administration
of Hong Kong Metropolitan University

BRENRBEERTERER
(BR7% - BIERERE)

Specialist (Services, Business and
Management), Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic & Vocational
Qualifications

AIEBAEMLEEIENE
(2008-2018)

Former Member, Barristers Disciplinary
Tribunal Panel (2008-2018)

RBBIEEESRVIES
(2000-2006)

Former Independent Director,

Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong
(2000-2006)

30 IREEREEER F 3R 2022-23

BEHRE

Mr James TONG Wai-pong

Member

BEBALEEERAGDAHEHES
Director Public Affairs, John Swire &
Sons (HK] Ltd

BBETARBTXER AR TREAAS
ZEEXE

Chairman, Advisory Committee for the
Department of Industrial and

Systems Engineering of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

[RHEBR | LRI EIEAZES
53]

Member, Advisory Committee on the
Enhancing Self-Reliance Through
District Partnership Programme

BREFESEFEE (RERRB24A)
(2021-2026)

Member, Election Committee
(Tourism Subsector) (2021-2026)

A PEEEREERE
Manager, Incorporated Management
Committee of Taikoo Primary School

ERRRABTERTEEANLZESES
Member, Industrial Advisory Committee,
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology

FNELEEFAEESEES
Member, Intangible Cultural Heritage
Advisory Committee

BYIEAANEZEEERE

Member, Museum Advisory Committee

LAEBIHES

Member, Shanxi Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference

EREBERTBRBEHBRHTEES
*E

Chairman, the Hong Kong Coalition of
Service Industries - Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce

mpm LA - BBS, JP
Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui,
BBS, JP

Member

ERATRBEREEERADEBES
Managing Director, RESOLUTIONS HR &
Business Consultancy Company Limited

BEREANEMEREERES
Member, Board of Directors of The Hong
Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute

BEELHEZEERE
Member, Committee on Self-financing
Post-secondary Education

BEEER [ ADERERE | BIT3E
PHEESERE

Chairperson, Cross-Industry Training
Advisory Committee for the Human
Resource Management sector under
Qualifications Framework

BEERHEHTEESEE
Member, Hong Kong Housing Society
Executive Committee

MERIEFHEESZEEZEE
Member, Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board

LEAEFHERBRBHREEREZES
ZER—REEAENEEESER
Member, Standing Committee on
Disciplined Services Salaries and
Conditions of Service, and Chairman,
General Disciplined Services
Sub-Committee

BESHMASESSEINE
Lay Member, the Council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants



=g X A - BBS, MH, JP
Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man,
BBS, MH, JP

Member

D REEEERAGARIEFXFRAA
HE

Director, VL Asset Management Limited
and Abercan Limited
EEMESEERESENE

Board Member, Airport Authority Hong
Kong

HERZERARDNEZRHE
Director, Aviation Security Company
Limited Board

BRHAEMLESEAZESETER
BSREZAZEREREZS
Chairman, Corruption Prevention
Advisory Committee, and Ex-officio
Member, Advisory Committee on
Corruption of Independent Commission
Against Corruption

BEEEERARBILIHNTES
Independent Non-executive Director,
MTR Corporation Limited

NEEHFERBRBEGHEREEEES
Member, Standing Commission on
Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service

FEBEFME (FITRH) LREES
B

Member, Unsolicited Electronic
Messages (Enforcement Notices) Appeal
Board

HIEMRA L
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

(fEEAER 2023 F1 A6 BBER © )
(Appointment effective from 6 January 2023.)

Member

IBREMBBREEA

Partner, Gallant

BERRSEREESERE
Member, Betting and Lotteries
Commission

EREMSENEEEZEREER
LEEBEEERE

Member, Consents Committee, and
Standing Committee on Compliance,
The Law Society of Hong Kong

HEZREALEAGEERAR [LE
EHE KB

Member, Disciplinary Tribunal Panel,
Association of China-Appointed
Attesting Officers Limited

MEEEXEERRERLEZESTE
Member, Property Management
Services Authority, and Chairperson,
Disciplinary Committee

RBEREREERE
Chairman, Transport Tribunal
(on rotation basis)

BEs %4 - BBS, JP
Mr Charles YANG
Chuen-liang, BBS, JP

Member

HHRETMTEEERA
Sole Proprietor, S. Y. YANG & Company

EENREENREREAT  HER
STEEEEER

Fourth Vice President and Chairman,
Admissions, Budgets & Allocations
Committee of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong

HT-BREEERARDBLFEHTES
Independent Non-Executive Director,
Chevalier International Holdings Limited

BEREEEGRESAE
Treasurer, Council of The Hong Kong
Academy for Performing Arts

CEBREREREEENE
Member, Hospital Governing Committee
of Yan Chai Hospital

“%%&@ﬁ%%%@ﬁ%ﬂ%&
SIMASHEESE

Member, Institute of Chartered

Accountants in England and Wales and

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants

RSB LFERE LFREEENE
Panel Member, Insurance Appeals
Tribunal

BRESESEREE
Fellow, The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors
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;R{ER, 8 OUTGOING MEMBERS

BRERLT ’
Ms Catherine SO

(I 20224F 6 B 148 ) »\. v
(Appointment up to 14 June 2022.) t-.-'.,’.'l»:

BEEXrR®L > JP
Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling, JP

({EHAZE 2022F7H28H °)
(Appointment up to 28 July 2022.)




ZEE

B (FRG) » IRER A RIARNES
» EBAERERNNSE » BN TEE
GEE - AANERIE - (FLBREZEGER
CFRBI) RIS > IREEBIFRIL T 5 R
EEEE > WEREBHIE - EEMEE
15 E SRIAYEER ©

ZEEDRIA

(1) STRIKIESIZES

% %E 2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Committees

According to the Ordinance, TIA may establish different committees
and refer a matter within the scope of its functions to a committee
for consideration, inquiry or handling. Apart from the Disciplinary
Committee which has to be established in accordance with the
Ordinance, TIA has also established five other committees to assist
TIA to formulate, administer and oversee policies in specific areas.
The committees are:

1) Codes and Guidelines Committee

) Compensation Committee

(3) Corporate Services Committee

(4) Development Committee

) Disciplinary Committee

©) Licensing Committee
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- IR

B 28

FAIRIESIZEE

(1)l

>
—

J

(@) RIUMEBMITEGE  LUREAE (2
FRITETEZHF N RRRVEE 5 Uk

Q) MABNIRLCEFEN - HEE
BEFMAZENFZEREERRE
WVERNSEERHEER  EERE

LHIMERLE ©

BEEZESESENBESEE » FTE2HRAE
8 (I E2023FE3H31H)

s AR ERITAER (1)
Bifs R BEBES ~ I8 RITAST

as follows:

All committees have their own respective terms of reference. Their
main functions and the membership lists (as at 31 March 2023) are

Codes and Guidelines Committee

escorts;

Formulate and review guidelines, directives and codes of
conduct regulating travel agents, tourist guides and tour

Establish and implement an administrative scheme for
regulating shops that inbound tour groups are arranged to
patronise; and

Offer advice on disputes between consumers and licensees
that do not involve disciplinary matters as well as administer
the relevant independent panel until such panel has been

appointed by the Secretary.

ZFE Chairperson

EJE R Vice-chairpersons

B B Members

IREREER F) 2022-23

SEEEEAAE > MH
TmIEERLL

L5 0 BBS, P
FEMRMTLE > SBS, JP
WRFEL L
HEELE

Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit, MH

Mrs Gianna HSU WONG Mei-lun

Mr Paul LEUNG Yiu-lam, MH

Ms Kerry CHING Kim-wai

Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, BBS, JP

Mr Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP

Mrs Ann TANG YU Li-hua

Mr TSE Yun-sang

Mr WONG Ka-ngai

Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
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RELZST Compensation Committee

(1) #BEBEUEF) WRE > TERESER (1) In accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance, consider

EEETHRIBINERERBHEE whether funds in TICF should be used to handle applications
BEREZ ; for ex gratia payment from outbound travellers;

(2) FLIMEIRE B EELT EEENEZRE R (2)  Determine the amount of payment for applications for ex gratia

TEAFERERERE ; UKk payment from outbound travellers; and
3) 1B (EF) NIRE > EE RN (3)  In accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance, consider
BESERINIKERSMBEES whether to allocate funds from TICF to cover the expenses
HITZEBBEERAZ IR © incurred by TIA in performing its functions relating to TICF.
X% Chairperson MEFH T E Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay
BI=EFRE Vice-chairperson BREERELT Mrs Gianna HSU WONG Mei-lun
/B L MH Ms Agnes CHOI Heung-kwan, MH
SEEERLE > MH Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit, MH
RS A » MH Mr Roy LO Kai-pong, MH
F% B’ Members o
b s e Mr Tommy TAM Kwong-shun
BEEHIE Mr James TONG Wai-pong

BRSNS » BBS, MH, JP Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP
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HISEHEZE Y

() BERESNAAETH EINE
REH ;

(2 EZEBEMKRERNINGHNEREE ;

Q) BREFMKERENETKEERS
RERBMVHEEEE ; Uk

(4) EEBFEEEERY

Corporate Services Committee

(1) Handle all related matters for administration, staff and
resources;

2) Consider matters related to the external affairs and publicity;

(3) Handle matters related to the funds of TIA as well as the
investment strategy and the financial management of TICF; and

(4) Manage the e-levy system.

X% Chairperson =M E > BBS, JP Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, BBS, JP

BIEE Vice-chairperson RRIZEut Ms Kerry CHING Kim-wai
BEBRZ+ Ms Dilys CHAU Suet-fung
BKEEL L MH Ms Agnes CHOI Heung-kwan, MH
REEMLL Mrs Gianna HSU WONG Mei-lun

FX B Members
KAL) BBS, P Mr Chrris IP Ngo-tung, BBS, JP
MR A Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay
EERLE Mr James TONG Wai-pong

REXEER S, 2022-23



HREEY

(1)

EEKREABABEESTELHOR (1)
88 USRI R EE R
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Development Committee

Manage and use the funds set aside from TICF for supporting
the continuous development of the travel industry;

Consider and formulate, as necessary, guidelines and
procedures for applications for funding as well as the criteria
for evaluation and approval in support of the continuous
development of the travel industry;

Evaluate applications, set terms and conditions for approved
projects, and formulate arrangements for disbursement of
funding; and

Oversee the progress and outcomes of approved projects
and disbursement of funding.

@) EEE%FEE’Z%J/EEEE’EMLﬁh,\E 2)
BERMEBRIERFIESIMER
ZAEBNRIEER] 5

Q) EEBRFEZ UHME#HIERTEH 3)
ERRAMEE > LUR I E BB R Ea &
EZHE 5 MUk

4) BEBEMBEBENERE - EMEL (4)
HIBEI o

* & Chairperson BEBXZ L

B E ¥ Vice-chairperson

R B Members

WRFEL L
EREMILE
HhEIESE
HERTE
RRRZS

Ms Dilys CHAU Suet-fung

Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit, MH

Mr Victor LAM Hoi-cheung, JP
Mr Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP
Dr Barry MAK Lui-ming

Dr Priscilla POON Chau-min
Mrs Ann TANG YU Li-hua

Mr James TONG Wai-pong
Mr Ricky TSE

Mr WONG Ka-ngai

Hon Perry YIU Pak-leung, MH
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HREET Disciplinary Committee
(1) BRIEALRER; (1) Handle disciplinary matters;
@) HEIERURELEEZR ; UK (2)  Devise procedures to handle disciplinary cases; and

Q) WFETHEH—ELEGE > LUAN (3)  Formulate and implement a disciplinary mechanism for

THEHThE A B4R BIEITE) © disciplinary actions against licensees.
X% Chairperson PREILE > P Mr Johnny LEUNG Ka-kui, JP
EEBIEL Dr Barry MAK Lui-ming
EBIERE Vice-chairpersons
BN AAE 0 BBS, MH, P Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP

ri
I
H

SBEEEITE » MH
BEHL54E 0 BBS, P
SFERIE
MIESRE > IP
RBREE > MH
ZEERRSTE 0 SBS, P
BIEs skt

FX & Members BN TR L
WRFAEL L
BEHLE
HEERE
HOEESE
HRERTE
EfRmE > BBS, JP
L]y
BB > BBS, JP

38 IREXREEER 3R 2022-23

Ms Kerry CHING Kim-wai

Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit, MH

Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, BBS, JP

Mr Kenneth KING Yue-kin

Mr Victor LAM Hoi-cheung, JP

Mr Paul LEUNG Yiu-lam, MH

Mr Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP

Mr Martin MA Yuk-man

Mr Tommy TAM Kwong-shun

Mrs Ann TANG YU Li-hua

Mr James TONG Wai-pong

Mr Ricky TSE

Mr TSE Yun-sang

Mr WONG Ka-ngai

Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, BBS, JP
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP



MEEE R

(1)
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RERTAERS SEREFZHE (1)
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= EAMEENARNRANNER
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Licensing Committee

Handle licensing matters of travel agents, tourist guides and
four escorts;

Consider matters relating to pre-examination training
courses, licensing examinations and Continuing Professional
Development scheme for tourist guides and tour escorts;
and

Consider matters relating to training courses for authorised
representatives of travel agents.

X ¥ Chairperson BE=LE > BBS, P Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
BI=EFRE Vice-chairperson =EmmsTE 0 BBS, JP Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, BBS, JP

SEFERSTE » MH

Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit, MH

ELgAE 0 BBS, P Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, BBS, JP
SFESE Mr Kenneth KING Yue-kin

M E

RRETE > P

Mr Kevin LAM Sze-cay

Mr Johnny LEUNG Ka-kui, JP

REBEYLL Ms Lanny LEUNG Kong-lan
AL 5 OBS, JP Mr Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP

FERFRSTE » MH

X 8 Members

BIE~c et
EEAELT
TEHEL
BRFEL L
EpE ey e
BRE

i
i

L

=] Ve og

Mr Roy LO Kai-pong, MH
Mr Martin MA Yuk-man

Dr Barry MAK Lui-ming

Dr Priscilla POON Chau-min
Mrs Ann TANG YU Li-hua
Mr TSE Yun-sang

Mr WONG Ka-ngai

M HA > BBS, MH, JP Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP

Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan
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HEERMFRME

HEERFRVERER R TR T ¢

HRY

HEERE/NE (VE) BIER AR
BERERERBR (BR) ARE > THER
2R OREEFEAD 165220 IFERIER
REBIERR o /NER B BIEX T RIFE
FAL HREEREIEZFERASIEERA
+o

fRkRE

RN RCEEERN  HEBRFEA
ZERFE - BFRIFLIRE ~ BixE
BEH o FEFED AT AR AV NE
ARFF AR IREEARTS SN - TR RIEREITE
2R ~ MhREdFIEEE TR o

1 EREBEMIE 620 (BERREGI) ETT
BIFBRRIZR ©
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Consumer Relations Panel

The composition and main functions of the Consumer Relations Panel
are as follows:

Composition

The Consumer Relations Panel (the Panel) is appointed by the
Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism (the Secretary) in
accordance with section 152(2)(l) of the Travel Industry Ordinance
and the Secretary also decides the appointment terms. The Panel
members include both trade members and non-trade members, of
which the Chairperson and the Vice-chairperson shall be non-trade
members.

Functions

The Panel is responsible for handling disputes between consumers
and the licensees that do not involve disciplinary matters, deciding
and reviewing the disputes and related affairs. In addition to disputes
between the consumers and the licensees involving inbound or
outbound travel services, such disputes shall not have gone through
any legal procedures or arbitration and are not in the process of
mediation’.

! Refer to the mediation conducted under Mediation Ordinance (Cap.
620) of the Laws of Hong Kong.
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The membership list of the Panel (as at 31 March 2023) is as follows:

X ¥ Chairperson

BIEE Vice-chairperson

FRFRR

Non-trade Members

R BB Trade Members

STRICCER
BRIkt
PR B2+
Rk EL
F=uL
RERRIC X T
AREFE
HEEL T
BErut
et
BRERE
ESEE
SRARTE
MABER LT
BEREL
PEREEL L
R
EmrE

> MH

> BBS, MH

> MH, JP

Professor Michael HUI King-man, MH
Mr Alex LIU Kin-sing

Ms Grace CHAN Man-yee

Dr Jennifer CHOW Kit-bing, BBS, MH
Ms Vanessa LAU Chi-wan

Ms Winvy LUNG

Mr SHEK Kwo-fung

Ms Kate SHIEH

Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP

Ms Fion YIP Yan-ting

Mr David CHAU

Mr Teddy CHUNG

Mr Kelvin KO Chun-wang

Ms LAM Tan-ha

Ms Lolanda LAW

Ms Jacky LUK Lai-yuk

Ms Pianka NG

Mr James TUNG Pui-chuen
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RERMRETEZREEZE T ET(E/NAR The number of meetings held, average attendance rate and number
P022E 23 FEMNETHRE ~ FHHER of papers considered by TIA and its various committees and working
RBEZEXHEENT groups for the year 2022-23 is as follows:

eEue FEHEE |FEXTEE
Number of Average Number
meetings attendance of papers
held rate considered
IRBEEEEE S Travel Industry Authority 6 88% 51
FAIRKkIS5|ZE H Codes and Guidelines Committee 2 78% 16
B2{8Z S ® Compensation Committee 4 75% 7

I8 FEIEZE T Corporate Services Committee

ZEE KB T IE/\4E Committee and Working Groups 11 72% 20
#RZHE® Development Committee 1 82% 2
431#Z 8 & Disciplinary Committee 2 76% 6

#HBZS ® Licensing Committee

ZEE KB T ILE/\H Committee and Working Groups 12 85% 33

HEER% A Consumer Relations Panel 1 83% 1
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Disclosure of Interests

In order to avoid any actual or potential conflict of interest, maintain the
integrity and credibility of TIA in the travel industry, and enhance public
confidence in TIA, TIA, pursuant to section 158 of the Ordinance,
requires members of TIA or disciplinary committee and members of a
committee or working group of TIA to disclose to TIA any interest that
the person has which is of a class or description decided by TIA (i)
after the person’s appointment, (i) at the beginning of each calendar
year after the person’s appointment, (i) on becoming aware of the
existence of an interest not previously disclosed, (iv) after any change
occurs to an interest previously disclosed, and (v) after the person
becomes aware that the interest that the person has or acquires
could conflict with the proper performance of the person’s relevant
functions.

If a member of TIA has a disclosable interest in a matter under
discussion at a meeting of TIA, the member must disclose the nature
of the interest at the meeting, and the disclosure must be recorded
in the minutes. During discussion, the member may be directed to
withdraw from the meeting, not to vote in relation to the matter under
discussion, and/or not to be counted for a quorum. The Executive
Office will attach a declaration form for disclosure of interests when
it issues the agenda and meeting documents to members before
a meeting. If a member has a disclosable interest in any agenda or
meeting documents, the member must retumn the declaration form to
the Executive Office two clear working days before the meeting. TIA
has also established and maintains a register of interests recording
the particulars of disclosure of interests for public inspection.

In addition, all TIA staff must declare any direct or indirect interest
in any business/individual/organisation that competes with TIA, has
business dealings with TIA, or is regulated by TIA.
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AR#% 456
=l

IRFEEAE

Performance Pledge

Enquiries

ARFE5IR S

Service Standard

EiRE

Achievement

Service Type

CIEBEEEH EEHR)
Response to enquiries by phone
(voice mail message)

S EEEH
Acknowledge receipt of written
enquiries

EEEEEH

Reply to written enquiries

L4 HREBXEEER F3R 2022-23

MELZ{ERA
Within 1 working day

58 TIEXRA
Within 5 working days

7TEIERA
Within 7 working days

BFHTERERSR
E-levy system
—fREH

General enquiry
IRiE R EEE
Travel Industry
Compensation Fund
BFEtEHERS
E-levy system

— R

General enquiry
MR EE S
Travel Industry
Compensation Fund
BT EEMBRA:
E-levy system
—REH

General enquiry
SRS
Travel Industry
Compensation Fund

100%

95.20%

100%

100%

100%

98.03%

100%

100%

99.34%
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EFRE Complaint Investigation
BRFSEE BRFSIREE EIRE
Service Type Service Standard Achievement
MBI EEIEET S5EIIERA B
Acknowledge receipt of written complaints Within 6 working days ’
HAEERFER » WENKRHFABMRATEERERH
MR AR HEAE BREHAS B FeSTR BB A 3ETIFRA
Appoint investigator and inform the complainant the Within 3 working days upon issue 100%
commencement of an investigation with contact details of of the acknowledgement receipt
the investigator provided
AR ABREZNRATEE F1EA 0
Inform the complainant the progress of the case Every month ?
BRI ABRBEEER I TRHBEER BB RHER AT R
@A) 14ETIFRA 100%
Inform the complainant that the investigation has concluded/  Within 14 working days upon TIA's 7
curtailed with the case result (if any) provided approval to case curtailment
BARMABSRARASEAR KL TRERTER EIRERHUER IERERRY
(mAE) 1AEIIER -
Inform the licensee that the investigation has concluded/ Within 14 working days upon TIA'S ’
curtailed with the case result (if any) provided approval to case curtailment
RiEERERES Travel Industry Compensation Fund
BRFSERE IRFHIRE EIRE
Service Type Service Standard Achievement
ERE AR TS R R AR %
FRIRREE R TAEm ERMERINEENTE EERR 4ETIERAM
FEEREEZR Within 4 working days upon receipt 00
Handling of ex gratia payment applications in respect of loss  of sufficient information and after ?
of outbound fares the applicant making a statutory
declaration
TEWCZ R B K FRss AEE
EBAERAEITIERAMHE

RIERINERINM A R ERESR

Handling of ex gratia payment applications in respect of 100%

Within 4 working days upon receipt
of sufficient information and after
the applicant making a statutory
declaration

outbound accidents
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83
RRET

Full-time staff

3  RAREEER

BREFE T ' Travel agent licences
Temporary staff
= 1,132

Tourist guide licences

1,681
SERRRRER

Tour escort licences .

1,622
HEAT IR A

Travel agent licences

1,479
S LD

Business permits

9,381
i

Tourist guide licences

13,364
SRR R

Tour escort licences

f REREER
" Travel Industry Authority

= |8




BHEENRERA -~
(2022 9 B1HZE2023%E3 A31H)
Number of licences issued and

renewed
(from 1 September 2022 to 31 March 2023

968
BRAT IR B

Travel agent licences

598
GinshR iR
Tourist guide licences

1,043
SRR hRER

Tour escort licences

WERFRE WEEEEE 4
(F2022% 9 A1HE 202343 A318)
Number of licences suspended /

revoked
(from 1 September 2022 to 31 March 2023)

0
YR iEE R
Suspended

16
RS AR
~ Revoked

BHEERHEEF w=202%38318)

Facts and figures (as at 31 March 2023)

Wt&liﬁtﬁﬁlﬁ‘ﬂﬂﬁ
(202259 18X 2023563 A31H)

Number of Mainland inbound

tour groups registered |
(from 1 September 2022 to 31 March 2023 -

4,754

& Tour groups

170,446

B & Tourists

EARIRITEEMBEETHRAEIT
WSS E o
(2022998 1HE202343H318)
Number of shops registered
under the Administrative Scheme
for Registered Shops for Inbound

Tour Groups
(from 1 September 2022 to 31 March 2023)

me@m 13

% OF QP

By o’ Utes

= § LD
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Facts and figures (as at 31 March 2023)

b a".’.“»
B WAy
Number of candidates L8N
sitting for 4527
9
GinERE R A

Licensing examinations of
tourist guides

48

EXEEE AR
Licensing examinations of
tour escorts

“y SRR
e m@igﬂ
Continuing Professional. & 5 b3
Development (CPD) actiy J}tﬁs« okl
licensed tourist gwdefs*{ o T

It ¢ .ﬁ"-ﬂ ! ? i‘t‘/ J
129

SRR FHEE R EEEERIRE
Number of recognised CPD
activities organised

3 211

T?—:ﬁ;%% EEEREIRNZ B AR
Number of enrolments for
recognised CPD activities

79

A HEE EIEEES

Number of CPD activities
. recognised by TIA

janl

N\

N—1

= [
i -

BERTREBRBREEERE
Certificate of competency

in first aid for tourist guide

and tour escort

2,141
SEAR

Number of enrolments

BREARRE i
Authorlsed representatlve t 0 ,:’; ,, s
9 0 1

3 Number of enrolments

52 MEXEER T3] 2022-23
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Facts and figures (as at 31 March 2023)

Training subsidy s
for practitioner
travel trade

1,866 - . smme

EitixERE g Number of enq )
Approved applications in relationto
2,988
BFENTERE
— A E-levy
::—{‘p wg " ",” L2
Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ o 13,104
Number of seminars organised : — R

General enquiries

| 24 914

IR ARER S

Travel Industry Compensation Fund

Vo SR Y S

: *HJ 2 % S AR B &
Number of requests for
assistance received and
complaint cases
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BhEIRiEE MR ESIE

Implementation of the new regulatory
regime for the travel industry

fBE (MkiBr=1561) (55634F) ((15B1))
F2022F 9B 1 BIETVAERL » iR ZEHTR
ENEEEEBN R ERBRERERE
BOH—HER o BRI EIIZMVRRRE
—F > REBEEN I TEREBBAR
AR 187ET (RA) BT IkE S BY
RERBEREES]  BHRERIERFU
JEFHEATANELE ©

REXEER F3k 2022-23

The Travel Industry Ordinance (Cap. 634) (the Ordinance) came into
effect on 1 September 2022, demarcating the full implementation
of the new regulatory regime and a new milestone for Hong Kong's
travel industry. In this important year of transition, TIA continues to
maintain its focus on communication, coordination, and fulfilling
the statutory functions and enforcement powers conferred by the
Ordinance, so that the new regulatory regime could be smoothly
implemented and operated.



2022F23FEMEET ¥

HREFIEHITER New regulatory regime milestones
2011448 BRBITSREEXG  RE SRS EE RS RBNRN R GREERNAR
April 2011 HER -

The Government issued a consultation paper on the review of the operation and regulatory
framework of Hong Kong's tourism sector, and invited views from the trade and the public.

2018411 8 IEEEE (RG> BRIIIREERE TARER > WETPAEARMBHAS ©

November 2018 The Ordinance was passed by the Legislative Council (LegCo) which provided a legal basis for
the establishment of TIA and set out the composition and functions of TIA.

202018 IREEBIZIR (IRGI) piL » BESIEMRE » GBS, PEZREAE —ERERERE o

January 2020 TIA was established under the Ordinance. Mr MA Ho-fai, GBS, JP was appointed as

Chairperson of the first term of TIA.

L

2022FE2BE4H IREEE L (IR THREFIENBEI AR SEREHEG 0 BRAH/ N\ 2 TEES ©
February to April 2022 TIA published a consultation document on the implementation details of the new regulatory

regime under the Ordinance and collected feedback from the travel industry through an eight-
week trade consultation.

202258 TIENBIRBHRRRILES » ETTRE] L RERNIET ©

May 2022 Seven pieces of subsidiary legislation were submitted to LegCo for negative vetting.

202246 2 M BB R B E T ETTAY ©

June 2022 The enactment of subsidiary legislation was completed.

2022 7R CIERBI) PEDIEEIR B > IREIFBEREEHEE MARTTRIEREME GfME) &
July 2022 BIREEZRE () MREERERS (BERES) EBEZEgRAEIE -

Part of the transitional provisions under the Ordinance were implemented. TIA commenced
the transitional work with the Travel Agents Registry (TAR) under the Tourism Commission, the
Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong (TIC) and the Travel Industry Compensation Fund (TICF)
Management Board.

202298 (EB) 2B > REBENIBEHE  TERE - REXEEESSENQRTRES
September 2022 BELLTEREE  HITIREHE -

The Ordinance was fully implemented. TIA assumed statutory functions such as licensing,
industry regulation, TICF administration and the imposition of levies on travel agents, and
enforced the new regulatory regime.
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Trade consultation completed and
subsidiary legislation passed

To ensure that the new regulatory regime for the travel industry would
fully balance and take into account the views of the industry and
various stakeholders, TIA held an eight-week trade consultation from 9
February to 5 April 2022 to seek feedback from industry practitioners,
organisations, and relevant stakeholders on the implementation
details of the new regime, including subsidiary legislation made
under the Ordinance, the Directives for Licensees, and other related
recommendations. During the consultation period, TIA held a total
of 22 online briefing sessions, attracting 53 organisations and 610
enrolments. In addition, 97 opinions and enguiries were received
through telephone and written submissions. The results indicated
that the industry in general held a positive view of the new regulatory
regime, and a detailed summary of the trade consultation was
published on the TIA website in April 2022.
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Executive Office of TIA in Wong Chuk Hang.

MR E E A - IREEBRERE
FRIED BB ~ BB R IREF LD

UM RE 8RR o IR EIREESR
MEZFMEFERTHEE > THROPNE
RBRERNERIRIE > TRITHAEHER
PEREXZERBERAEEREESETFE
MHEEBENEERE LB ZHE - 115
SEBERNFMENERAREE > Ik

b8 IREXEER F], 2022-23

As a newly established regulatory body, TIA believes that effective
communication and networking is key in building credibility and
trust. To stay updated on industry opinions and operations, TIA
has maintained open communication with the industry and its
stakeholders. This has helped TIA to strike a balance between
regulating the industry and addressing its needs, and to develop
appropriate regulatory standards and arrangements. After carefully
considering the opinions and recommendations of the industry
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and its stakeholders, TIA submitted a legislative proposal to LegCo
prompting the formulation of seven pieces of subsidiary legislation,
among others, within the framework of the Ordinance:

1. Travel Industry Ordinance (Commencement) Notice 2022;

2. Travel Industry (Authority Levy — Percentage of Outbound Fare)
Notice;

3. Travel Industry (Compensation Fund Levy — Percentage of
Outbound Fare) Notice;

4, Travel Industry (Collection, Payment and Recording of Levies)
Regulation;

5. Travel Industry Compensation Fund (Amount of Ex Gratia
Payments) Regulation;

6. Travel Industry Compensation Fund (Procedure for Ex Gratia
Payments) Regulation; and

7. Travel Industry (General) Regulation.
These pieces of subsidiary legislation were submitted to LegCo on

11 May 2022, enacted in June 2022 and came into effect with the
primary legislation of the Ordinance on 1 September 2022.
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TRITHRIEREHRER
Travel agent licence

Business permit

BifshRER
Tourist guide licence

SEPXARIR
Tour escort licence

%
Total number

Mechanisms and procedures for licence
application

Under the new regulatory regime, TIA has assumed the industry’s
licensing and regulatory functions from TAR and TIC and established
approval mechanisms and procedures for licence applications,
covering the process from receiving applications and verification to
approval and random post-licensing inspections. As of 31 March
2023, together with the applications transferred by TAR and TIC after
the implementation of the Ordinance, TIA has received some 4,700
licensing and renewal applications.
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1000
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From 1 September 2022 after the new regime takes effect.

Transitional arrangements for licences
and streamlined training courses and
licensing examinations

During the transitional period of the new regulatory regime, TIA
facilitated the industry's smooth transition from the pre-existing
tourist guide and tour escort passes to the new licences by offering
streamlined and flexible licensing procedures. These procedures
included designing and launching streamlined training courses and
licensing examinations, as well as a one-time automatic renewal
measure for licences. Holders of pre-existing travel agent licences
or duplicate licences, tourist guide passes, and tour escort passes
that expired between 31 August and 30 November 2022 (i.e. the
day before the new regulatory regime's implementation and its initial
implementation stage) could automatically extend their expiration
dates to 1 December 2022. Before the relevant deadline, pre-
existing tourist guide pass holders could complete the Flexible CPD
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Scheme for Tourist Guide to have their passes renewed as tourist
guide licences. Those whose tourist guide or tour escort passes
expired between 30 September 2020 and 31 July 2022 and who
did not apply for renewal of the passes can, within two years after
the expiration date of their passes, still be issued a tourist guide
or tour escort licence by completing a streamlined first aid course,
passing the relevant streamlined licensing examination, complying
with any other relevant requirements and applying for the licence.
This reporting year, TIA has organised 13 streamlined licensing
examinations to facilitate holders of pre-existing tourist guide and tour
escort passes, whose passes have expired for two years or less, with
obtaining licences under the new regulatory regime. A total of 609
applicants attended the examinations, with an average passing rate of
97%.
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TIA conducts a final preparation for the transitional and bridging arrangements
on 31 August 2022 for the new regulatory regime to be fully implemented on 1
September 2022,

TICF, e-Levy and other information
technology systems

To facilitate the discharge of TIA's functions and internal operations,
TIA has launched and maintained a range of information systems
which include a human resources management system and an audio-
visual system for meeting rooms. TIA has also taken over and begun
operating the licensing, pass issuing, e-levy and other information
systems from TAR and TIC. Currently, TIA is looking into ways to
further enhance its information technology systems with a view to
promoting office automation and a paperless working environment.

In compliance with the Ordinance and Directives for Licensees,
licensed travel agents must register and submit a registration fee
to TIA when organising Mainland inbound tour groups, indicating
the number of participants, itinerary, transportation arrangement,
accommodation and other relevant information. To facilitate the
industry’s needs and enhance operational efficiency, TIA has set up
an electronic form for registering Mainland inbound tour groups. This
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also helps TIA systematically arrange and consolidate various data
and important information. The electronic forms have been available
since March 2023 as an additional option to the paper forms.
Starting from May 2023, TIA will only accept electronic forms for
this registration process to be more environmental friendly and time-
efficient.

During the year, TIA also successfully migrated TICF to the new
regulatory regime, including transferring the relevant bank and
investment accounts set up at the banks and investment managers
to TIA, updating the e-levy system, and transferring cases and files
etc. According to the Operation Manual for the administration of the
Travel Industry Compensation Fund, the e-levy system shall undertake
safety assessment and evaluation every two years or in appropriate
cycles. A new round of assessment and evaluation work began in
late December 2022 and is expected to complete before May 2023.

New regulatory regime and post-pandemic
support

By the end of 2022, the Government announced the easing of
various social distancing and entry measures. This was followed in
February 2023 by the orderly resumption of cross-border travel with
the Mainland. TIA has not only assumed a regulatory role over the
travel industry, but also taking up an important role of supporting its
development. To support the recovery of Hong Kong's travel industry
and facilitate the implementation of the new regulatory regime, TIA has
launched a series of work plans aimed at assisting the travel industry
with reactivating and adapting to new changes.
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Training subsidy scheme for practitioners
of the travel trade

~
~

e JN

The Government allocated HK$100 million towards subsidising the
training and development of travel trade practitioners in the year
2022-23, to promote talent development of the trade and support
trade practitioners to get prepared for the post-pandemic reactivation
of tourism activities. In November 2022, TIA has launched a three-
year training subsidy scheme for practitioners of the travel trade
to enhance the skills of practitioners and help them maintain their
competitiveness, facilitating their return to the travel industry. Under
the scheme, qualified licensed tourist guides and tour escorts can
be reimbursed for the fees related to registration for their licensing
examination, taking part in Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
Scheme activities, and attaining the certificate of competency in first
aid or other similar certificates, up to HK$2,000. As of 31 March
2023, TIA has approved a total of 1,866 related funding applications.

Alongside the training subsidy scheme for practitioners of the travel
trade, the Government has proposed extending the arrangement
for exempting the first issuance, renewal of travel agent licences,
or issuance of duplicate fees, as stated in the 2022-23 Budget. To
further support the industry, TIA has continued these arrangements
after taking over the licensing function from TAR, and has extended
the related fee exemption arrangements to tourist guides and tour
escorts.
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New regulatory regime briefing session
and industry information seminar

Throughout the year, TIA hosted several seminars to share information
and maintain close communication with the industry, covering the
latest updates and developments under the new regulatory regime
and discussing preparations for returning to normalcy after the
pandemic. Among the briefing sessions, 11 of which were dedicated
to licence renewal arrangements for tourist guides and tour escorts
under the new regulatory regime, the CPD Scheme for Tourist Guides,
and the training subsidy scheme for practitioners of the travel trade.
These activities received positive responses from all participants.
Additionally, TIA held industry information seminars covering the
details of the Directives for Licensees and the Administrative Scheme
for Registered Shops for Inbound Tour Groups. TIA also hosted an
online seminar introducing and providing relevant training on the
e-levy system, helping the industry deepen and consolidate their
professional knowledge while offering practical information on the
industry developments.
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Optimised human resources and website
information functions

To ensure the seamless implementation of the new regulatory regime,
TIA has ramped up its workforce, with a total of 83 employees as of
31 March 2023. The organisation has also enhanced its electronic
systems and website in order to improve the efficiency of front-
line work, respond promptly to various enqguiries and strengthen
inspections, and has been proactively expanding its online resources
such as by setting up an online appointment booking system. This
provides the industry with a more convenient way to access related
services and fosters greater exchanges and interactions with different
stakeholders.
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Furthermore, to strengthen the understanding of TIA and the new
regulatory regime among industry practitioners and the general
public, TIA has further optimised the information and functions on
its website. In late August 2022, TIA launched the second phase
of its website, adding content on licensing, regulations (including
directives), disciplinary, complaints, TICF, professional development
courses, an online appointment booking system, and more. The
website also features barrier-free web design and search engine
function with a view to improving and enriching its overall content
structure, functions, and design. These efforts make it easier and
more convenient for industry practitioners and visitors to browse and
search for the information they need, providing them with a better user
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experience. TIA was honoured by the “Web Accessibility Recognition
Scheme 2022-2023", organised by Hong Kong Internet Registration
Corporation Limited and co-organised by Office of the Government
Chief Information Officer, where it received the Silver Award in the
Website Category for its excellent design for web accessibility.

Elevating the professional standards
of Hong Kong tourism to safeguard
travellers’ interests

The sustainable development of Hong Kong tourism relies on the
professionalism of the travel industry and tourists’ confidence.
Following the full implementation of the new regulatory regime in the
travel industry, TIA immediately initiated a series of work plans through
rigorous licensing and regulatory systems as well as compliance
checks to safeguard the safety and interests of travellers. This will
enable TIA to promote the robust, long-term development of the local
travel industry.

Continuing Professional Development
(CPD) courses and examinations

All travel agents (including online travel agents), tourist guides and tour
escorts must obtain a valid licence to operate and engage in the travel
business. To enhance the competency and professional standards
of industry practitioners, TIA has formulated pre-examination training
courses, licensing examination syllabi, and first aid course syllabi for
tourist guides and tour escorts, as well as courses for authorised
representatives of travel agents and a CPD Scheme for tourist guides.
As of 31 March 2023, TIA has organised 29 courses for authorised
representatives of licensed travel agents with approximately 1,634
participants.
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This reporting year, TIA specified three institutions, namely Hong
Kong Red Cross, Hong Kong Society of Professional Medical Care,
and Hong Kong St. John Ambulance to organise Certificate of
Competency in First Aid courses. These three institutions held 114
courses with a total of 2,134 participants. TIA also appointed TIC
to hold licensing examinations of tourist guides and tour escorts
for a period of one year, the first of which was held in March 2023.
In December 2022, TIA appointed the Vocational Training Council,
the Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions Occupational Retraining
Centre Limited, the Hong Kong College of Technology, TIC, and the
Employees Retraining Board to organise recognised pre-examination
training courses for tourist guides and tour escorts.

In addition, TIA has approved 79 applications for recognised CPD
activities submitted by 13 organisations under the CPD Scheme for
tourist guides, as well as 29 Part C self-selected activities submitted
by individual licensed tourist guides during the year.

Licensed travel agents who used to be suspended or penalised
for violating regulations must complete a compliance course before
reapplying for a licence to uphold the professionalism and quality of
Hong Kong's travel industry.

Enquiries and requests for assistance

TIA is committed to maintaining an open platform for external
communication. For this purpose, it has set up e-mail, telephone, fax
and post channels to handle enquiries and complaints from tourists
and the public. All cases are handled systematically on a fair and
objective basis. As of 31 March 2023, TIA has received 13,104
enquiries, primarily about licence renewal, training courses and travel
agents’ service standards, as well as 796 requests for assistance or
complaints, chiefly regarding air tickets, hotel accommmodations and
outbound tour groups.



2022-23 FEEHBKED Statistics on enquiries and requests for

[E-30H assistance for 2022-23
ERRNAFEEIZE13104FREH Among the 13,104 enquiries TIA received in this year, in which
EF'12 1857|< EER - 7667|<1_ﬂa5i5 ) 12,185 cases were through enquiry hotline, 766 cases were via
163 BIBEE ~ BFIFRERIRES © e-mall, while the remaining 153 enquiries were via fax, post or in
person.

BAREEHLIZETSTEREEZE » H Besides, TIA received 768 requests for assistance, in which 371
371 REHEMBEEEN 802 THBEE cases were referred by other organisations, 302 cases were via e-mall,
M 3TERNENE R T EBER - B and 63 cases through enquiry hotline. The remaining 32 requests for
FHREEIRELD © assistance were via fax, post or in person.
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Mode of enquiries received

766
5.85%
By phone call By e-mall
O EE . BHFLEE
By fax, post or in person
E R RENEISE $E3ERBh A
Enquiries and request for assistance or complaints Mode of requests for assistance received
768 302 371
0,
5.54% 39.32% 48.31%
63
32
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13,104 8.2% 4.17%
94.46%
® = ® EH
O =:H © kB By phone call By e-mall
Enquiries Requests for assistance o= ﬁﬂ*ﬁ%%ﬁfl\ ) {%E . ,@3 %ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁa
Referred by By fax, post or in person
other organisations
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Hong Kong has resumed travel gradually and comprehensively.
In view of this, TIA has adopted a flexible arrangement on certain
dates to extend its hotline services beyond normal business hours
to include late nights, weekends, and public holidays to address
urgent calls involving inbound tour groups. TIA also analysed data and
information about the data received from enquiries and complaints
on a quarterly basis to better understand the common problems
faced by the trade in relation to the Ordinance and the Directives
for Licensees, as well as to formulate effective proposals for
explanations and communication. In addition, the Executive Director
of TIA personally chaired a number of face-to-face and online focus
groups with travel agents, tourist guides, tour escorts and industry
stakeholders to understand the needs of Hong Kong's travel industry,
and explore ways to enhance its service quality and reputation.

Inspections and investigations

Onsite inspections are one of TIA's key duties in safeguarding tourists
and upholding professional standards for the industry. This reporting
year, TIA conducted 777 inspections, including 483 routine and
nine targeted inspections. The remaining 285 inspections covered
matters such as the registered addresses of travel agents with
pending approvals for business permits, new applicants for becoming
registered shops under the Administrative Scheme, and catering
premises arranged by licensed travel agents for inbound tour groups
to visit (in accordance with the targeted arrangement for inbound
tour groups announced by the Government in November 2022), as
well as various ports of entry, individual inbound tour groups and the
locations of shops previously registered under TIC.
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To strengthen the communication with industry stakeholders, TIA
actively engaged with a number of online travel agents to enhance the
understanding of relevant stakeholders towards the functions of TIA,
the Ordinance and its subsidiary legislation, as well as the Directives
for Licensees. Such communication also enabled TIA to remind
licensees to appropriately handle enguiries and complaints regarding
online purchases of travel products to enhance consumer protection.
With the Hong Kong travel industry’s gradual return to normalcy, TIA
will continue to reinforce the efficiency of its inspections and work
closely with other relevant law enforcement agencies to enhance the
effectiveness of its law enforcement.

On the investigation front, TIA made investigations on 62 cases
involving travel agents carrying on a travel agent business without a
licence or by violation of the licence conditions, making unauthorised
changes to the ownership or control of the travel agent, providing
false information during their licence application, committing fraud and
violating the relevant provisions in the Directives for Licensees. Among
these cases, 36 were suspected of involving offences beyond
the Ordinance and were referred to the relevant law enforcement
departments for follow-up in accordance with the established

procedures.

i
P

7
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Mr Samuel NG (second from right), Director of Operations, attends an online
briefing at the Hong Kong Police Headquarters to discuss the arrangement for
various inspection and enforcement works.
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Administrative Scheme 8

Administrative Scheme for Registered
Shops for Inbound Tour Groups

In accordance with the Ordinance, TIA established and implemented
the Administrative Scheme for Registered Shops for Inbound Tour
Groups (the Administrative Scheme) on 1 September 2022 to
regulate shops that inbound tour groups are arranged to patronise.
Under the Administrative Scheme, licensed travel agents must register
these shops with TIA to ensure consumer rights and interests.

The Administrative Scheme consists of two parts: the Administrative
Scheme for Registered Shops for Mainland Inbound Tour Groups
(Administrative Scheme for Mainland Groups) and the Administrative
Scheme for Registered Shops for Non-Mainland Inbound Tour
Groups (Administrative Scheme for Non-Mainland Groups). All shops
intending to become registered shops under the Administrative
Scheme must undertake to guarantee a full refund to eligible
customers within a specified post-transaction period. In addition,
shops that become registered under the Administrative Scheme
for Mainland Groups must implement practical and feasible crowd
management measures. TIA has formulated working procedures,
rules of procedure, disciplinary measures for violations, review
mechanisms, and guidelines and criteria for crowd management
measures. A working group and a review committee have also
been established to handle and review cases involving suspected
violations.

TIA received 37 shop registration applications from 164 travel agents
in this reporting year. Of these, the number of applications approved
is as follows:

o Groups — &

JEPOI TR SR 7

Administrative Scheme
for Non-Mainland
39
Groups | ‘ | ‘ |
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Number of registered shops Number of travel agents submitted applications
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The number of shops approved for registration in the reporting year was 13, among which 6 shops only received Mainland Groups, 5 shops only received Non-
Mainland Groups, 2 received Mainland and Non-Mainland Groups.
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On the other hand, as the number of inbound tour groups gradually
increased, TIA has reviewed and reinforced its inspections on
registered shops in a timely manner to ensure that the registered
shops satisfy the relevant requirements and regulations. As of 31
March 2023, TIA has conducted a total of 175 inspections at 13
registered shops and 776 inspections to licensed tourist guides
who arranged for inbound tour groups and relevant coaches for
transporting tour groups to patronise registered shops. TIA has also
proactively organised meetings with the applicants or persons in
charge of the registered shops to make sure that they fully understand
the Administrative Scheme.

Establishing the Emergency Response
Unit

To further protect the safety of inbound and outbound travellers and
respond flexibly and effectively to various unforeseen emergency
incidents, TIA has formulated a contingency mechanism for these
matters in accordance with the Ordinance. As part of this, TIA set
up an Emergency Response Unit consisting of representatives
from seven sectors, including inbound and outbound travel agents,
ticketing agents (air tickets), hotels, tour coaches, insurance, and
tourist guides/tour escorts. TIA has also developed an Emergency
Support Service Providers List and an Emergency Support Fund in
order to provide timely support services in an emergency.

Establishing the Consumer Relations
Panel

To handle disputes between consumers and licensees that do not
involve disciplinary matters, TIA established the Consumer Relations
Panel (the Panel). Panel members are appointed by the Secretary for
Culture, Sports and Tourism (the Secretary) in accordance with the
Ordinance, from both the trade and non-trade sectors.
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During the reporting year, TIA handled 25 disputes between
consumers and licensed travel agents involving tour groups, air
tickets, hotel accommodations, and other travel products such as
flight and hotel packages. Among these cases, three were settled
after conciliation, and 17 were still undergoing conciliation between
the consumers and the licensees. The remaining five cases were
terminated, including one where the consumer failed to reply to TIA,
one where the consumer withdrew voluntarily, and three that were
resolved without compensation or refund.

Establishing a disciplinary and penalty
system

Under the Ordinance, TIA can investigate licensees suspected of
any breach of the law and take appropriate disciplinary actions if
necessary. In this regard, TIA has formulated the procedures of
proceedings of inquiries, such as rules for giving evidence and
sentencing reference, to ensure a consistent approach to handling
contraventions. TIA has also completed formulating internal guidelines
for making an order for licensees to pay the costs and expenses
incurred in relation to the inquiry conferred by the Ordinance to
exercise its power effectively. During this reporting year, TIA identified
no cases requiring disciplinary actions following investigations.

Under the new regulatory regime in the travel industry, anyone who
aggrieved by a decision or order made by TIA referred to in Section
120 of the Ordinance may lodge an appeal to the Secretary, who has
established an Appeal Panel to handle the matter in accordance with
the Ordinance.
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A multi-pronged approach to improve
operational policy and promote
communication and collaboration

TIA understands that only through continuous review and optimisation
with a candid and open attitude can spur the long-term development
of Hong Kong's travel industry. Applied to both internal administration
and external collaborations, these processes enable the marketing,
communication, collaboration, talent base, administration and
finances of TIA to function efficiently and effectively.

Income and expenditure

TIA's income includes changes in the fair value of fund investments,
as well as revenue generated from the Authority levies, bank interest,
registration fees for Mainland inbound tour group and licence-related
fees. TIA began to receive relevant income starting from 1 September
2022, when the new regulatory regime of the travel industry came
into effect. This reporting year, TIA has made a fund investment of
HK$150 million which generated HK$8.86 million in income from fair
value changes, accounting for 53% of its total revenue. According to
the Ordinance, a licensed travel agent is liable to pay TIA, in respect
of every outbound fare received by the travel agent, an Authority levy.

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 75



2022FE23FEMNEET#

B HERTRIEFEEEEEE M
ZRAEBMEWRNESEINEE > BRE
BEAEE - R REFRBEASESE
SNIEEERY 0.15% © TREE B AR B E E i
FH 449 BATTIRERHBEUWA » (hHAEUL
A27%° S—HMHE " KEFEITHE
WA ERF BRI T 4 182 BBt
259% > {HABUT A 15% ©

BT AR E R EITEARERMA
FELZH > DREARREEZ 70% K 12% °
NIABEEES T AA 49808 87T
B EMBEEEINT 426258 8t
111% o TERREREEFRESNER
202298 1 HEEEN @ IRBERHIRE
RHNFIEN TAE o b4 > IREERR L@
VHEERARATREEDREBE T
1 442 BB T RASTOEBTHETEE
E > FEABKRKERRME > UBLER
EFRETHNERE » SYERRBITENR K
MERE FF49536 887t 161% ©

HREE R A A B E RIS AS

4 4 9 BSTRERMBEIRA
{54 A 2 7 0/ 0

BRIILR » k&R —ERARIREMB
JRA - BiEIRER (ki R B R REYR
RRF5E51) KB EBI M T EERIETTIE R
RE > DURIREUERFE R P AR B i BRI
S HFFITRAFS R ASIER] » AORE KT
ERTHMBEENR  2EERBFE
T WEYIRGRRER M BHORM B
ZHF REUBERENRIVEE » DI
R HHEREMRE -

76 HEBEEEER FH 2022-23

The current rate of Authority levy is 0.15% of each outbound fare
received by the travel agent. A total of HK$4.49 million was generated
from the Authority levy, accounting for 27% of TIA's total revenue for
this reporting year. In addition, bank interest income accounted for
15% of TIA's total revenue, recording a growth of HK$1.82 million,
equivalent to an increase of 259% over the last reporting year.

TIA's two major expenditures were staff costs and depreciation
on property and equipment, which accounted for 70% and 12%
respectively of its total expenses. Staff costs for the reporting year
were around HK$49.8 million, an increase of HK$26.25 million (111%)
over the prior period. The primary reason for this was increased
manpower requirements related to the implementation of the new
regulatory regime of the travel industry since 1 September 2022. In
addition, TIA acquired fixed assets, primarily computer equipment
and software, worth around HK$14.42 million and HK$3.70 million
respectively at the end of the last and in this reporting year to
address the needs of the new regulatory regime. This resulted in a
depreciation cost of about HK$5.36 million (161%) in property and
equipment in the current financial year.

A total of H K$4-49 million

was generated from the
Authority levy, accounting for

27 0/ O of TIA's total revenue for

this reporting year

Since its establishment, TIA adopts a prudent financial management
approach and strictly works in compliance with the Guideline on
Procurement of Stores and Services and established financial
strategies in its financial planning. TIA has also adopted strict internal
monitoring policies to oversee its expenditures and execute cost
controls with the objective of maintaining long-term, self-financing
operations. TIA is committed to continuing to consolidate and
optimise its financial management policies to better apply its seed
money, while carefully monitoring its financial status and control
measures to ensure a proper and stable financial system.
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Automation and paperless workflow

During the reporting year, TIA further improved its information
technology system by implementing automation and paperless
workflow in office with a view to promoting the concept of
environmental protection and social responsibility. The automated
workflow process also helped TIA enhance its overall operational
efficiency and the accuracy of its data and record archives. In early
May 2022, TIA's human resources management system became
fully operational in support of the calculation of salary and MPF, tax
reporting, and employee records on personal information and leave,
as well as self-service platforms for employees. In addition, the audio-
visual system of the conference room was fully upgraded, and various
other information and operational systems are also launching and
updating in order to meet the daily operational needs of TIA.

Optimising talent strategies

TIA attaches great importance to talent training and development,
and reviews its internal hiring and recruitment strategies on a regular
basis so as to improve its human resources management policies
and measures, such as through arranging orientation seminars for
newly joined employees and providing comprehensive trainings for
existing employees. Apart from that, TIA also invited representatives
from relevant professional organisations, such as the Security Bureau,
Immigration Department, Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC), Hong Kong Tourism Board and Consumer Council, as guest
lecturers to share their diverse professional knowledge with a view
to enhancing the team’s understanding on handling travel-related
regulatory work and strengthening tactics on work among sections.
During the reporting year, TIA also upgraded a number of facilities in
its workplace to provide its staff with a better working environment. In
addition, an Employee Handbook was also published with an outline
on its human resources system, code of conduct, office policies,
and so forth, to ensure that all staff at TIA to clearly understand and
comply with the organisation's policies and culture.
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Work of TIA and its committees

TIA, its committees and working groups of different areas regularly
hold physical and online meetings to actively discuss and promote
the implementation of various projects and proposals. During the
reporting year, a total of 39 such meetings were held by TIA, its
committees and working groups.

Media and communication initiatives

Since its operation, TIA has actively sought to develop close contacts
and exchanges with the industry, different stakeholders, the mass
media and the general public in order to introduce and promote its
work and the new regulatory regime. In addition to launching its official
website, TIA also created local and Mainland social media accounts,
such as Instagram, LinkedIn and Weibo, on which it can widely
promote the establishment of TIA and its statutory functions through
multiple channels and ways with various target audience. This would
also enable the industry and different sectors of the community to
have a more comprehensive and in-depth understanding of the
new regulatory regime of the travel industry. To enhance consumer
awareness about the Compensation Fund, TIA also launched
promotional projects on the online platforms of local travel magazines,
strengthening its publicity and promotion in related areas. During
the reporting year, Chairperson and Executive Director of TIA were
invited for various interviews with newspapers, magazines, electronic
media, and tertiary institutions to introduce and share the TIA's work
plans, thereby further enhancing the community's understanding and
awareness of TIA through diversified communication channels.

REEB TR R SR TE
EEBETRBAEIERIK
BEEEZERNEBHF P
2022F11HS8EOHAEB R
KEREENREZBHNIRE
[ B B8 BE 2 3R BRF e 7 3 BV 2%
BT -
Mr Samuel NG, Director of
verations, is invite

2, providing an update for erested in joining
ies of TIA and the development of the travel industry.

ol of Hotel and Tourism Management



2022F 23 FEREETF

FW)%ATE%‘%DD%EET RTEE
BRKREE > DF) %E@IT’E %W

A anis
mneet with 1

me Vi €
for the first time,

ERm)EMTH‘uWE et (RIHF/E7N) RHUTHRER RIS E R 2022
t sations 5H26H Hj EE /%ﬁkﬁ¥$u# = E/ﬁ ~ 375 jf :-H:'%JME] @H*iﬁt‘?ﬁheq Fé
aring the w )”W \ N ¢ TTH B F%{ji\ﬁA B h 2 BREBRFBE By » BERBHE—IL

.

/t@g © ;;”‘
"‘c,.ri‘
|
ative Col
i : :
&
r—
|

Travel Industry Authority [R#EEEE R ||
Law Enforcement - Hong Kong - 73 followers - 19 employees By

2%
L 4

+ Follow Visit website &

Home About Posts Jobs People

mmmmmmmmmmmm Rl SER ©
About
O me13 Hx2
o Established in January 2020 under the Travel Industry Ordinance (Cap. 634), the Travel Industry
HARHERE248 Authority (TIA) is a statutory regulatory body of the travel industry primarily responsible for the licensing
and regulation of travel agents, tourist guides and tour escorts. Following the full implemen ... see more

O fEilEES
% i b7 e Show all details -

hk.tia

o

3 .
22 posts 107 followers 0 following

o
ravel Industry Authority IBEEER TIA

MRESEE RS (Travel Industry Authority) Z1RHE (FREIEMRGI) (5634F) RBIIMMREEEERE
EHE > TEESEMRTRES BENERNRRTIRESE AN SEEREEEEES
MERTREEEEE -

@ tia.org.hk

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23



2022FE23FEMNEET#

PSRRI (EIR R

AFETRE El?%ﬁxﬁzﬁ@ CIRBD BT 8930
ENES] 0 IRE B —EARIR E A R BUN ERFT

/iﬂiﬁ%ﬁku ReFpVEBEEE > WHET
BERABIERS - XFERERTBIZIEE
T2 36 SRIEER I K (1R LAINEBIAT
BREBRXTHMIPUEEREEE > SIMK
BB ERARL (IRB1) K (7 amarBRIRG1)
(F3628) NEGHEEIRRXAER

BUMEBERIE S 2HEN RIBR M
Hl > WIRERIE R EE BRI ST
gj] °

linp 4N ITEBE R 2023 FE 0 E

a*&*ﬁ%f“é;ﬁ BIBRRHABERFBIM
UBhE/NE  EEREFEZMENER
RIRIER DB RT » UREEZ
ERRERMEZNERER » WAL
BREEREAREN T EEEIRG AT
MAERRA] o

°
MBEHTRS
COMPETITION
COMMISSION

B MifBE SR (RBRG) o LB
61: 2022%F10H180
&

MREZRFY 20224 10 B 18 B 224 MiRie2E 8 (55
BEG)) BLEE BEBRFEHEEGR
KENTHE LN RFTARDZIBEERDE

EIERNZEG > BERATE—T THRNEE

(FRFERGI) Eﬁ@%ﬂguﬂ °
TIA organises a webinar on Competition
rdinance on 18 OL, ober 2022. Representatives
e Competition Commission are invited
duce the ",\i flags of anti-competitive

ices and se studies in relation to the
M Istry with the aim of enabling the trade

0 Hm more about thﬁ relevant
e Competition Ordine

80 IMREEXEEER F3R 2022-23

Cross-agency collaborations and
connections

To ensure the effective exercise of its law enforcement powers
conferred by the Ordinance, TIA has proactively fostered strong
communication channels with different government departments
and statutory bodies, and formulated appropriate mechanisms for
coordination. Throughout this reporting year, TIA has successfully
referred 36 suspected cases involving the violation of laws other than
the Ordinance for follow-up by other law enforcement agencies, in
accordance with the established procedures. In addition, TIA has also
engaged in extensive discussions and constructive exchanges with
the Customs and Excise Department (C&ED) conceming cases that
pertain to both the Ordinance and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Cap. 362). Through this collaboration, TIA has established robust
mechanisms for mutual cooperation, case referrals, and information
exchanges, 1o ensure that joint operations to be conducted in a timely
manner and based on the prevailing circumstances and operational
needs.

In early 2023, TIA's Executive Office obtained the approval from the
Corporate Services Committee to establish a corruption prevention
group in partnership with ICAC with a view to identifying potential
areas for research, determining project priority, closely monitoring
the progress of research projects and the implementation of
recommended measures. This proactive approach will ensure that
TIA's licensing regulations and operational matters adhere to the
principles of faimess and impartiality at all levels.
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On the other hand, to enhance and consolidate trade practitioners
professional knowledge and practical insights regarding the trade
development, TIA has proactively organised online seminars
with various organisations, such as the Narcotics Division of the
Security Bureau, C&ED, Immigration Department, and Competition
Commission. These seminars provided a platform to introduce the
latest development on drug control in Hong Kong as well as the
enforcement efforts performed by the Assistance to Hong Kong
Residents Unit and C&ED, and the application of the Competition
Ordinance relating to the travel industry. TIA has also used its official
social media presence to actively promote the webinar co-organised
with the Office of the Government Chief Information Officer and
Cyberport, in order to enhance the travel industry's understanding of
the “IAM Smart” and
= Sandbox Programme.
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Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui, BBS, JP (second
from right), Chairperson of the Corporate Services
Committee, Ms Annie FONDA (right), Executive
Director, Mr Kevin CHEUNG (left), Director of
Regulatory Affairs, and Ms Venus WU (second from
left), Director of Corporate Services, lead the TIA's

team in the Chest's Walk for Millions for charitable and
public welfare causes.
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Strengthening TIA’s team and creating a
harmonious and inclusive workplace

TIA attaches great importance to its staff's well-being and team
cohesion. While striving to create a healthy, comfortable, diverse
and inclusive work environment, TIA also organises and encourages
employees to take part in various group and social welfare activities
after work. These diversified activities foster team spirit and allow
employees to fulfil their civic responsibilities, giving back to society
while enhancing their sense of belonging in the workplace and
creating positive work-life balance.

In addition, employees in all departments enjoy comprehensive
remuneration packages and benefits. TIA also provides briefings and
internal training opportunities for new recruits to help them enhance
their professional knowledge and skills. During the pandemic, TIA
adopted a series of preventive measures, including the introduction
of flexible work arrangements and the distribution of anti-epidemic
supplies. TIA also provided additional support for employees who
tested positive and required to undergo quarantine, safeguarding their
physical and mental health and needs.

TIA staff and social welfare activities for
the year 2022-23
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he representative team of TIA participates in “The Community Chest New

Territories Walk for Millions 2022 — Cross Bay Link, Tseung Kwan O”, and
attains the 4th Runner-up of Top Fund-raiser Award.
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REEBARRBEK—1T63 AR 2022F 11 8 A delegation of 63 TIA employees participated in “The Community
PCORZ2EABTA @RI 1202247 Chest New Territories Walk for Millions 2022 — Cross Bay Link,
mEMRERBRT - HERE L EREK Tseung Kwan O’ organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong
EH o ADEBARmTE TN 24BRERE (the Chest) on 20 November 2022. The team raised funds for 24
KSRERNRFEN G EMEERR > A member agencies that provide family and child welfare services under
RegBTREEAHESEHS o the Chest, and attained the 4th Runner-up of the Top Fund-raiser

Award in the New Territories Walk.
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Through orientation programmes organised on a
regular basis, TIA provides briefing for newly joined

staff on organisational culture and Codeq of practice
to enable them to adapt to the working environment.
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WG E TR AEMER B © promote team engagement and enhance its staff's sense of
belonging in the workplace.

%ﬁ Tores ‘{*—"?W«emﬁ,ﬁ&

BB EEHERELSE
§ GBS, P BIZELEBEY
T P~ IREEE B —
Pt ISl EIE= YA ES =
HEEMHETE

Mr MA Ho-fai, GBS, JP,
Chairperson, and Ms Vivian
SUM, JR, Vice-chairperson,
together with TIA members &%
and staff at a Christmas ,'5.’
lunch celebrating the festive &
season.
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Lion dance performance

at TIA celebrating the
Chinese New Year.
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Optimising the new regulatory regime
and starting a new chapter of travel

The year 2023-24 marks the first full year of the full implementation
of the new regulatory regime for the travel industry. TIA expects that
external promotion and exchange activities to be more frequent due
to the gradual execution of various transitional and bridging measures
and the development of new work plans.

As always, TIA remains committed to the idea of “every step makes
a footprint” in fostering strong communication and connection with
different stakeholders in the industry and community. TIA will continue
to review and enhance relevant mechanisms and procedures, such
as the mechanism for processing licence applications and regulatory
measures, in a timely manner that bolsters the overall regulatory and
service efficiency. Simultaneously, it will forge deeper partnerships
with government departments and stakeholders, as well as foster
connections with law enforcement agencies in the Mainland and other
regions. Furthermore, TIA will intensify its efforts in the promotion of
consumer education and protection, working diligently to ensure the
long-term, healthy growth of Hong Kong's travel industry, which we
consider our paramount responsibility.
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Optimising the mechanism and
regulatory measures for processing
licence applications

In light of the actual operation following the full implementation of the
new regulatory regime, TIA will proactively assess and optimise the
licence application process, strengthen staff training, revise guidelines
and codes, update relevant forms, and prepare comprehensive
manuals on an ongoing basis to enhance the efficiency of licence
processing, the overall licence application mechanism, and the
effective implementation of regulatory measures.
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With regard to the mechanism and regulation for processing licence applications,
TIA plans to implement the following enhancement measures:
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Revise the internal
guidelines and
strengthen internal
training

Review and add
or amend relevant
requirements
as necessary,
including the
Directives for
Licensees

Add new specified
forms and update
the application
instructions in each
form

J

Improving the professional level of travel
industry practitioners

When developing the syllabus for the licensing examination and
associated pre-examination training courses, TIA has actively
engaged with industry stakeholders, including trade unions,
associations, and educational institutions. This collaborative approach
incorporated valuable insights to meet the requirements for relevant
teaching content and materials, drawing upon the "Specification of
Competency Standards" established by the Qualifications Framework
for the travel industry. It also enriched the syllabus, leveraging the
functional scope and corresponding abilities outlined for tourist guides
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and tour escorts. Moving forward, all specified pre-examination
training courses, licensing examinations, and related recognised
activities under the Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
Scheme will be required to meet the "Specification of Competency
Standards". TIA has also selected and invited experienced tourism
training institutions to prepare relevant teaching materials and
ensure that the course content will cater to the practical needs
of industry practitioners. The new course syllabus is expected to
be fully implemented in the year 2023-24. To further enhance the
effectiveness of its quality assurance mechanism and ensure the
delivery of high-quality courses and training activities, TIA will also
develop a guality assurance manual for course and continuing
education organisers.

In addition, TIA will develop a handbook for authorised representatives
to help them understand and comply with the requirements outlined
in the Ordinance and Directives for Licensees. TIA will also update the
course content for authorised representatives as necessary in light
of regulatory experience and industrial operations, to enhance their
understanding of their roles and responsibilities.

In the coming year, TIA plans to create a question bank for the
licensing examinations of tourist guides and tour escorts with a view to
analysing and evaluating candidates' ability to master the examination
content, thereby enhancing the quality of the licensing examinations.
In addition to licensing examinations, TIA will also consult with the
industry to provide or arrange relevant CPD courses according to
its needs, and collaborate with professional groups and educational
institutions to develop medium-and long-term training programmes
that address the need for information technology capabilities. These
efforts will bolster the industry's knowledge and skills in these areas.

ol
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Streamlined training course for tourist
guides (foreign languages) and CPD
Scheme for tour escorts

During the pandemic, the travel industry experienced a brain drain,
resulting in a significant shortage of foreign-language speaking
tourist guides (FLTGs) who are proficient in languages other than
Mandarin, Cantonese, and English. To address this challenge, TIA will
soon launch a streamlined training course specifically designed for
FLTGs, as well as the relevant licensing examination syllabus, course
requirements and continuing education activities, in order to meet the
needs of the industry and enable more practitioners to acquire the
relevant professional knowledge and skills.

In addition, TIA will formulate and implement a CPD Scheme for
licensed tour escorts modelled on existing schemes for tourist guides
and incorporating their real-world needs in terms of the courses'
coverage, hours, and practical content, in order to meet the criteria
for renewal of licence.
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Information Technology project

W AIRIRITEEFETL RS
Mainland Inbound Tour Group
Electronic Registration System

Improving service efficiency

Since its establishment, TIA has actively promoted automation and
digitalisation efforts, and is planning further research on implementing
a comprehensive information technology strategy in phases. The
goal of this study is to improve operational efficiency and promote
sustainable business development through the formulation of long-
term, related information technology projects.
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Project Planning Schedule
R TR
Estimated launch/implementation time
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Board Secretariat Cloud System
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Information Technology Strategic
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Year 2023-24

P023FE2AFEE
Year 2023-24

To further enhance the efficiency, service and skills of its employees,
TIA will focus on strengthening staff trainings in the year 2023-24,
such as organising workshops on team building, crisis management,
time management, understanding of the Ordinance and its
application, and so forth. These trainings will further enrich and
consolidate the overall application skills and professional knowledge
of employees in different fields.

ol
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Representatives from the Tourism Commission,
TIA and Hong Kong Tourism Board at a field trip
in Macau on 10 February 2023, sharing insights
with the Macao Government Tourism Office on
the development and regulatory overview of Hong
Kong-Macau cross boundary travel.
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Optimising emergency response
mechanism

In addition to protecting visitors to Hong Kong, TIA is committed
to safeguarding the needs of outbound travellers, and has begun
studying the use of information technology systems to improve
the reporting arrangements for emergency incidents in relation to
outbound tour groups. Currently, if a tour group encounters an
emergency situation during the trip, such as a traffic accident or
natural disaster, it must make an immediate report through the travel
agent, local tour escort or tourist guide. However, even if the relevant
authority and agencies have been informed of the travel destination's
critical situation, it is not always possible to take immediate
corresponding actions. In view of this, TIA is studying the use of
information technology systems to improve reporting arrangements
and response mechanisms for outbound tour groups, in order to
provide timely support and assistance in the event of an emergency.
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Mr Kevin YEUNG, GBS, JP (front row, fifth from left), the Secretary for Culture,
Sports and Tourism, leads a delegation comprised of Ms Vivian SUM, JP
(sixth from right), Vice-chairperson of TIA, Ms Annie FONDA (third from right),
Executive Director, and representatives from the tourism industry to visit
Guangzhou and meet with the Director General of Department of Culture and
Tourism of Guangdong Province.
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source: The Government Press Release
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Integrated investigation case
management system

One of the main tasks performed by TIA is to combat non-compliance
cases and safeguard the image of Hong Kong's travel industry in
order to ensure that all complaints and code violations are properly
followed up and handled, and that investigations are carried out in an
orderly and rigorous manner. Within the next three years, TIA expects
to launch an integrated investigation case management system which
will electronically consolidate all enquiries, complaints, investigations
and conciliation cases to enhance overall effectiveness. This system
will also help TIA analyse data for forward-looking planning and
strategic studies.

Promoting consumer education and
publicity

In the future, TIA will continue to focus on communication and
development as one of its key tasks by launching a series of
diversified publicity programmes in phases to reach different
audience through multiple channels and methods. This will enable a
more comprehensive understanding of TIA and the new regulatory
regime across different industry stakeholders and sectors of society.
These programmes will include regularly updating the TIA's website
and social media pages with practical information and recent
developments, as well as the production of thematic promotional
videos designed to enhance the effectiveness of the promotions. The
first promotional video of TIA is scheduled to be completed in the first
half of 2023, and is to be broadcast via the Government's TV and
radio announcements in the public interest.

To promote the rights and interests of consumers, TIA plans to
organise industry information and public education seminars on
different topics, such as the e-levy and the importance of patronising
a licensed travel agent and taking out travel insurance. In addition,
TIA will brief practitioners on the Directives for Licensees and the
Administrative Scheme for Registered Shops for Inbound Tour
Groups, as well as provide training on the e-levy system, deepening
and consolidating their knowledge on industry developments.
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With regard to disputes between consumers and licensees that
do not involve disciplinary matters, TIA will hold quarterly focus
groups with the industry to seek efficient solutions and strengthen
communication. In terms of managing and supporting the Consumer
Relations Panel (the Panel), TIA will continue to formulate and review,
from time to time, internal reference standards, such as considering
criteria relating to compensation or refunds, for the Panel in handling
cases.

Strengthening coordination and liaison
with law enforcement agencies at home
and abroad

From time to time, TIA's work requires cross-departmental and
even cross-border cooperation with different government agencies,
especially in terms of inspections and law enforcement. To improve
its effectiveness in these areas, TIA will continue to strengthen
cooperation and maintain close communication with relevant
government departments, law enforcement agencies and units
on the investigation of criminal cases. In terms of regulating the
tourism business of overseas travel agents involving Hong Kong,
TIA is beginning to establish communication channels with tourism
regulatory agencies and relevant authorities in the Mainland and
other regions to strengthen collaborations on sharing inteligence and
investigating cases. At the same time, TIA will explore different options
to promote its regulatory work to tourists from the Mainland.

TIA also plans to conduct on-site inspections and analysis of popular
meet-up points and attractions for inbound tour groups, and establish
communication channels with the management units and relevant
stakeholders of these meet-up points and attractions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY

(established in Hong Kong under the Travel Industry Ordinance)
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Travel Industry
Authority (“the Authority”) set out on pages 102 to 136, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st March 2023,
and the statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes
in capital and reserve and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Authority as at 31st March 2023, and of its
results of the operation and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Travel Industry Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Authority is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Other Information (CONTINUED)

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Authority for the
Financial Statements

The Authority is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Travel Industry Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Authority determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Authority is responsible for
assessing its ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Authority either intends to
liguidate the Authority or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Authority is responsible for overseeing its financial reporting
process.

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 99
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Part 6 of Schedule 9 to the Travel
Industry Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Authority.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Authority’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to
cease to continue as a going concemn,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Authority regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

F S. Li&Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6th July 2023
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MRiEEEER
WzEER
TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

HE2023FE3831HIEFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

KA INCOME
REERBEWA Authority levies
A AIRRITEESD  Registration fee for Mainland inbound
BUTA tour group
MNEIRITESIMEE  Registration fee for registered shops
EEWRA for inbound tour group
BRI EIERRFR  Tour escort and tourist guide licence
HEREUA and related fees
Eﬁﬂgg\%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ Travel agent licence and related fees
HRITHEUA Bank interest income
BRAFEFEBIBE  Fair value gain on financial assets
SR B A B & B at fair value through profit or loss
NEEEIUIA
THSH ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

BT Staff costs
TZENEMBN & Auditor's remuneration
MERRBINE Depreciation on property and
equipment
EREEETE Depreciation on right-of-use assets
WAE MBS Office accommodation and related
expenses
BN KMERIREY T and related expenses
BEERFEHEZ Legal and professional fees
HINEFHEHS External relations expenses
Hh& Other expenses
ZiESHE OPERATING DEFICIT
M FINANCE COSTS
FEFIERZERS N DEFICIT AND TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE
EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

(£
Note

2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HKS
4,494,020
655,472
193,200
10,120
4,800 -
2,517,656 701,443
8,859,563
16,734,831 701,443
(49,804,132) (23,554,421)
(30,800) (28,600)
(8,697,712) (3,338,420)
(5,176,160) (4,875,695)
(3,481,709) (2,382,719)
(1,385,461) (292,662)
(1,481,225) (3,051,056)
(608,554) (358,457)
(110,021) (960)
....... (10,775,774) (6787799
(54,040,943) (37,176,547)
(215,156) (225,803)
(54,256,099) (37,402,350)
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TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2023FE3831H
AT 31ST MARCH 2023

Pfi5
Note
JERENE & NON-CURRENT ASSETS
YRR Property and equipment 6
FREEE Right-of-use assets 7
BEYENFRELS Deposit for acquisition of property
and equipment
MEiZe Rental deposit
TRENEE CURRENT ASSETS
WA EBIBIERSIIR  Financial assets at fair value through
BB E profit or loss
AR RN ZE A8 Deposit with bank for Training Subsidy
Bt EFBIRTT Scheme for Practitioners of the
EZ Travel Industry 8
FEWF) B R EAhFEIRER  Interest and other receivables
TaII™=R Prepayments
RITRIRSET Bank and cash balances
FEaS CURRENT LIABILITIES
MR EANSSE  Deferred government grant to
BhEt 8IRV IR e T 45 Training Subsidy Scheme for
RER Practitioners of the
Travel Industry 8
GEN=§=LE Lease liabilities 9

HMENTRESTIER  Other payables and accruals
FAWERIE Receipts in advance

BREBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS

2023 2022

#T BT

HK$ HKS
22,870,049 07,865,860
28,936,643 32,910,943

- 69,000

1,667,790 1,602,720
53,474,482 62,448,523

158,859,563

100,000,000 -
169,061 166,411
517,163 158,871
92,580,838 296,729,999
352,126,625 297,055,281
(100,000,000) -

(5,627,632) (5,163,876)

(14,866,744) (14,270,308)
(3,933,125) -

(124,427,501) (19,434,184)
227,699,124 077,621,097

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
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2023 2022
3 B BIT
Note HKS$ HK$
WEERRHaR TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 281,173,606 340,069,620
JERENEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
GEN==RE Lease liabilities 9 (25,661,073) (30,300,988)
BEE NET ASSETS 255,512,533 309,768,632
E1 RESERVE
EBERITREBT Grant from the Government of
EELE N HKSAR 350,000,000 350,000,000
KETE518 Accumulated deficit (94,487,467) (40,231,368
255,512,533 309,768,632

HNEI102E1B6ENMBRERN 2023 The financial statements on pages 102 to 136 were approved and
F7THOHERERBBRIEREER > I authorized for issue by the Authority on 6th July 2023 and are signed

U TREE . on its behalf by:

Mr MA Ho-fai, GBS, JP Ms Annie FONDA
SEiE%E, GBS, JP FRERL
Chairperson Executive Director
FE TR
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TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVE

BHE2023F3831HIEFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

202148 1H

FEBEREEXH

20223831 H
Fe2022F 481 H

FEBEREZEXYH

20233831 H

At Tst April 2021

Deficit and total comprehensive
expense for the year

At 31st March 2022 and
Tst April 2022

Deficit and total comprehensive
expense for the year

At 31st March 2023

R¥58E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EREITH
E BTk
Grant from the 415
Government Accumulated 4azE
of HKSAR deficit Total
BT ot BT
HKS$ HK$ HK$
350,000,000 (2,829,018) 347,170,982
(37,402,350) (37,402,350)
350,000,000 (40,231,368) 309,768,632
(54,256,099) (54,256,099)
350,000,000 (94,487,467) 255,512,533

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
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TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE2023FE3831HIEFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

SEIBZRERE

FERKE

WL NP S IAIEH R

RIS

P & EF 8
AT EFBRN
GRS
ATBEEBUA

e

EREBEERE

EEETHIRICE
BIFTRE

BERERFANTRZ
(1gm R

H ARG 18 0

B EET R
BZ1Em

FAWGRIE Z 1R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Deficit for the year
Adjustments for :

Interest income

Interest on lease liabilities

Fair value gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Depreciation on property and
equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Operating cash flows before changes
in working capital

(Increase)/Decrease in rental deposits
and prepayments

Increase in other receivables

Increase in other payables and
accruals

Increase in receipts in advance

BB ZEFRAZIREF NET CASH USED IN

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2023 2022
AT BIT
HK$ HKS$
(54,256,099) (37,402,350
(2,517,656) (701,443
215,156 225,803
(8,859,563)
8,697,712 3,338,420
5,176,160 4,875,695
(51,544,290) (29,663,875)
(423,362) 40,650
(4,283)
596,436 13,662,028
3,933,125
(47,442,374) (15,961,197)
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SRS RIS EEY
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BRE RS SEMGTF
SRk

IRITRIREHETT

W FARBIE =
BEIEZ EHAF

e
N

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Purchase of property and equipment
Interest received

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Decrease/(Increase) in fixed deposits
of more than 3 months to maturity
from date of deposit

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balance

Less: Fixed deposits of more than
3 months to maturity from date
of deposit

B 3535 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pfi5
Note

14

14

2023 2022
#iT BT

HK$ HKS
(150,000,000) -
(3,632,901) (31,085,933)
2,519,289 863,600
(151,113,612) (30,222,339)
272,000,000 (272,000,000)
(5,377,328) (3,529,951)
(215,847) (266,574)
266,406,825 (275,796,525)
67,850,839 (321,980,055)
24,729,999 346,710,054
92,580,838 24,729,999
92,580,838 096,729,999

- (272,000,000)

92,580,838 24,729,999

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
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TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2023ESASIHLEEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023
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Background

Travel Industry Authority (“the Authority”) was established under
the Travel Industry Ordinance (Cap. 634) and it commenced its
operation on 2nd December 2019. Its principal functions are
promotion of the integrity, competence and professionalism of
travel agents, tourist guides and tour escorts, and regulating
shops that inbound tour groups are arranged to patronize.

The office address of the Authority is at 8/F., South Island
Place, 8 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong
Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the functional currency of the Authority.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”),
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong, and the Travel Industry Ordinance. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

o)
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TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZEC2023FE3H31 HIEEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023
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2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(@)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
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TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2023ESASIHLEEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

2. FEEHESE (4) 2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)
(b) UL ARESR (b)  Revenue recognition
WAFZBE W ERRENR Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
NEEFE - HMEBKEN consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
mAE RO BEMANKER » probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
MUWAFI A (WEA) 5E% Authority and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
EHEENEER » BREW can be measured reliably, revenue is recognized in the
A LT B RN EW S 45 statement of income and expenditure as follows:
RIS -
REEREHE WAL EIHAL A Authority levies are recognized as income when they
6 e BA J35 480 1< BRF 4 FE 50 45 UK become due and payable to the Authority.
)\ o
IRITH B UL AR B RF X Bank interest income is recognized as it accrues using
S the effective interest method.
HUg A BLAFESTHIFESS © Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

110 MEREER F3) 2022-23



IxbEEEEER
BAEERRMEE
TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZEC2023FE3H31 HIEEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

2. FEREFHHK (8)

WA FEST (48)

RER =R SR ABIHESS
ERERANENEHFE
[B17 - ERERRBHNRE
W R B AE B AR 75 RO IE ) 1 42
BhhERE > REREITT
JB %9 75 W FE SR o LA
RAE LA 7T TURESY -

()  AMARRITEESC
BWAMARIRKTE
S EEMmEWA
PR HEARFS R b SR o

(i) HRIRE WA TE HE IR EA
WU BRI ERE T
LIRS o

R¥58E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(o)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Authority recognizes revenue from contracts with
customers based on the performance obligations
identified in the contracts. Revenue is recognized when
(or as) the Authority satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised service to a customer who
obtains the control of the service. Further details of the
Authority’s revenue recognition policies are as follows:

0) Registration fees for Mainland inbound tour group

and registered shops for inbound tour group are
recognized upon provision of services.

(ii) Licence fees are recognized over time on a
straight-line basis over the licence period.

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
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TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2023ESASIHLEEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023
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2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property
and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method as
follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the
term of lease or 5

years

Office fumiture and equipment 5 years
Computer equipment and software 3 years
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TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY
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2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(d

Lease

The Authority assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

The Authority applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Authority recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets are recognized at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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2. FEEHEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)
o HE @ (d)  Lease (continued)
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Lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in securities are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”"). Changes in the fair value
of the investments (including interest) are recognised in
surplus or deficit.

Investments in securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Authority commits to purchase/sell the
investments. Profit or loss on disposal of investments in
securities are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
investments and are accounted for in surplus or deficit
as they arise.

o)
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2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, wherever there is
any indication that an item of property and equipment
and right-of-use assets is impaired, the recoverable
amount of the asset should be estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognized in surplus or deficit. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss should not result in the
asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined has no impairment loss been
recognized in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to surplus or deficit in the year in
which the reversals are recognized.
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2. Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Q)

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables are
initially recognized at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced
through the use of the receivable impairment charges
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
receivable impairment charges account are recognized
in surplus or deficit. The receivable is written off against
the receivable impairment charges account when the
Authority has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the receivable.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of expected
credit losses decreases, the reversal would be adjusted
to the receivable impairment charges account at the
reporting date. The amount of any reversal is recognized
in surplus or deficit.
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2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits with banks within 3 months to maturity from
date of deposit.

Other payables and accruals

Other payables and accruals are initially recognized
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
Stated at cost.

Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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2. FEEHESE (4) 2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

K  1EERET (K Employee benefits
HENOmMMNES BEE Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions to
]~ RESRFTEREEIBIMH defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
TR IEE M MREH 2 AT non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
EIREE B R B IR HEERER the associated services are rendered by employees of
HNFEERNRET o the Authority.

(I EREEAL (I Related parties
MAMBERERMS > BREE For the purposes of these financial statements, a related
ATEBREFEUTEENA party includes a person and an entity as defined below:
TREEE
(I THATHHFIBRX (i A person or a close member of that person’s

BRERSHEKER family is related to the Authority if that person:

BRE > BB AT

(@  BEEEWH|SHEFEEZE (@  has control or joint control of the Authority:
BIRERS 5

b)) HREBREBEZFK (b)  has significant influence over the Authority:
FE ;W or

) ARkEFRFE () is a member of the key management
EBIEENE ° personnel of the Authority.
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2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

()

Related parties (continued)

For the purposes of these financial statements, a related
party includes a person and an entity as defined below
(continued):

(i)

An entity is related to the Authority if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a) The entity and the Authority are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies

() Related parties (continued)

For the purposes of these financial statements, a related
party includes a person and an entity as defined below

(continued):

(ii) An entity is related to the Authority if any of the
following conditions applies (continued):

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Authority or an entity related to the
Authority. If the Authority is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Authority.
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Significant accounting policies
(continued)

) Related parties (continued)

For the purposes of these financial statements, a related
party includes a person and an entity as defined below
(continued):

(ii) An entity is related to the Authority if any of the
following conditions applies (continued):

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(@ A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity.
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2. Significant accounting policies
(continued)

() Related parties (continued)

For the purposes of these financial statements, a related
party includes a person and an entity as defined below
(continued):

(ii) An entity is related to the Authority if any of the
following conditions applies (continued):

(h) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Authority.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

3. Taxation

The Authority is exempt from Hong Kong Profits Tax under the
Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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BZEC2023FE3H31 HIEEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

4. FHEL 4. Administrative expenses
2023 2022
BT BIT
HKS$ HK$
FEETBZEEIELT The folowing administrative expenses have
BEER been included in determining the deficit:
BT Staff costs
e R HAER Salaries and other benefits 48,473,883 23,097,158
REHTEIRET Contributions to defined
EalfEnfeasy contribution retirement plan 1,330,249 457,263
49,804,132 23,654,421
ZEEMEN & Auditor's remuneration 30,800 28,600
JHARETE Rental paid under short term
TS operating leases 165,754 485,087
5. MEMNT 5. Finance costs
2023 2022
BT BIT
HK$ HK$
HESEMNER Interest on lease liabilities 215,156 225,803

TRAVEL INDUSTRY AUTHORITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
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6. MERSHE 6. Property and equipment
YN BN
RARERE RE
HEMERE Office Computer
Leasehold furniture and  equipment peki]
improvement equipment and software Total
A iy BT B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B Cost
Ro021 FAB1 B4R Balance at 1st April 2021 - - 108,368 198,368
FNEE Additions during the year 16,515,546 2,350 14,499,037 31,016,933
Ro022F3H31HE  Balance at 31st March 2022
2022 4B 1 B&ER and st April 2022 16,515,546 2,350 14,697,405 31,215,301
FARE Additions during the year 166,470 - 3,535,431 3,701,901
RA23FEHS1 B BdercoatSisthach 2028 16682016 2000 182328%  G4017.202
BN Accumulated depreciation
R2021E4 1 B4R Balance at 1st April 2021 - - 11,021 11,021
FRTE Charge for the year 1,376,296 39 1,962,085 3,338,420
R2022F3H31HBE  Balance at 31st March 2022
2022F 4B 1 B&ER and st April 2022 1,376,296 39 1,973,106 3,349,441
FRITE Charge for the year 3,341,160 470 5,356,082 8,607,712
20233831 BA&E:  Balance at 31st March 2023 4,717,456 509 7,329,188 12,047,153
REFE Net book value
2023838 31H At 31st March 2023 11,964,560 1,841 10,903,648 22,870,049
202238318 At 31st March 2022 15,139,250 2311 12,724,299 27,865,860
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7. ERESEE 7. Right-of-use assets
BIT
HK$
[D%iN Cost
20214818 ~ Balance at 1st April 2021,
2022 £ 3 B 31 HASER 31st March 2022 and
R 2022 % 4 B 1 BiSER 1st April 2022 39,005,561
FIEIN Additions during the year 1,201,860
2023 % 3 B 31 B456R Balance at 31st March 2023 40,207,421
RETITE Accumulated depreciation
2021 E4 81 HEEER Balance at 1st April 2021 1,218,923
FRITE Charge for the year 4,875,695
R2022 3831 HMK Balance at 31st March 2022
2022 FE 4 B 1 BAEER and 1st April 2022 6,094,618
FRIFTE Charge for the year 5,176,160
2023 % 3 B 31 H4ERR Balance at 31st March 2023 11,270,778
ERENFE Net book value
20233831 H At 31st March 2023 28,936,643
20223831 H At 31st March 2022 32,910,943
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7.

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Authority is the lessee of properties held under operating
leases.

The Authority entered into a 8 years fixed term lease
commencing from 1st January 2021 for an office. The monthly
rental for the first 4 years is fixed while the monthly rental for
the residual of the lease term will be determined by reference
to the open market rent. The monthly rent to be determined
for the 2nd 4 years shall be within the range not less than the
monthly rent of the 1st 4 years but not higher than an agreed
rental ceiling.

In addition, the Authority entered into a 3 years fixed term lease
commencing from 1st July 2022 for an office. The monthly
rental is fixed.

Deposit with bank for Training
Subsidy Scheme for Practitioners of
the Travel Industry

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“Government”) allocated HK$100 million to the
Authority to launch a three-year training subsidy scheme for
practitioners of the travel industry with a view to enhancing
the professional standards and service quality of the industry.
According to the “Agreement for the Implementation of the
Training Subsidy Scheme for Practitioners of the Travel Industry”
entered into between the Authority and the Government, bank
deposits are held for the latter in the form of trust. The relevant
amount is recognized in current assets and current liabilities
respectively in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 1. The interest income accured will be credited to
the unspent balance of the scheme.
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9. HEAMR 9. Lease liabilities
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HKS$
FHHEER Balance at beginning of the year 35,464,864 39,035,586
HEMEERRIRE  Present value of the new lease payments 1,201,860
FEZH Interest expense 215,156 225,803
BENHEENR Lease payment made (5,593,175) (3,796,525)
FRAERR Balance at end of the year 31,288,705 35,464,864
HEaBEEMHR RPN Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial
e position as follows:
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HKS$
REaE Current liabilities 5,627,632 5,163,876
IS I =R Non-current liabilities 25,661,073 30,300,988
31,288,705 35,464,864
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9. HEAR (&) 9.

RRERRRBEORMIBELRZ
HESEZFBERNT

Lease liabilities (continued)

The maturity profile of the lease liabilities, as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

2023 2022

B BT

HKS HKS$

REE Carrying amount 31,288,705 35,464,864
BHIKRITIRIBEMABEE Total contractual undiscounted cash flow

-FEE KRB - Within one year or on demand

—FR 5,809,800 5,359,800

- Bih—F - More than 1 year 26,021,550 30,818,850

31,831,350 36,178,650

10. IBBEMERBRBZEBRHE 10. Capital commitments for acquisition

i of property and equipment

2023 2022

72 BT

HKS HK$

EETAERNBE Contracted but not provided - 161,000
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1. EMEERAR
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11. Financial assets and liabilities

(a) Categories of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets
At fair value:
Current assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

At amortized cost:
Non-current assets
Rental deposits
Current assets

Deposit with bank for Training
Subsidy Scheme for
Practitioners of the Travel
Industry

Interest and other receivables

Bank and cash balances

2023 2022

& BT

HK$ HK$
158,859,563

1,667,790 1,602,720
100,000,000

169,061 166,411

92,580,838 296,729,999

194,417,689 298,499,130

353,277,252 298,499,130
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1. EMEERAR (18)
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11. Financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

(a) Categories of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities -
at amortized cost:

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities

Current liabilities

Deferred government grant to
Training Subsidy Scheme for
Practitioners of the Travel
Industry

Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals

2023 2022

& BT

HK$ HK$

25,661,073 30,300,988
100,000,000

5,627,632 5,163,876

14,866,744 14,270,308

146,155,449 49,735,172
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11. Financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

(o)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

In the normal course of the operation, the Authority
does not expose to significant interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and price risk. Other risks are described
below:

Liguidity risk

The Authority’s policy is to monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following table details the contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Authority’s financial
liabilities:
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11. TRISFEREE (8) 11. Financial assets and liabilities
(continued)
b HHERREENBZERER (b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(48) (continued)
mEEERRE (8) Liquidity risk (continued)
FRIBIRIRMY —FMsg
BRRERE BEX
IRE$% Contractual Within iBig—
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or More than
amount cash flow on demand 1 year
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HKS HKS HK$

20283831 H At 31st March 2023
iGUEZNEIN= Deferred govemment grant to

EHIERNE 2 Training Subsidy Scheme

BB for Practitioners of the Travel

HER Industry 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 -
HEak Lease liabiliies 31,288,705 31,831,350 5,809,800 26,021,550
HitERFURE Other payables and accruals

HEEE 14,866,744 14,866,744 9,378,446 5,498,298

146,155,449 146,698,094 115,183,246 31,614,848

B2022%3831H At 31st March 2022

HEafk Lease liabiliies 35,464,864 36,178,660 5,359,800 30,818,850
HitERFURE Other payables and accruals
HEELE 14,270,308 14,270,308 11,940,745 2,329,563

49,735172 50,448,958 17,300,545 33,148,413
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1. ERMRERAR (8)

© 2»nEE

2023438 31 H K 20224
SE3 I HFIESMEEKRE
EZBEAEAABELE
BEAREE - AAEETHIZER
HEIREMEUIREFF =T
HIREMmEE o

12. SN EIR
REREBEANEES |

@ MEKREBFEESHEE
75k

b)) BREESHER-

11. Financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

(c) Fair values
All financial assets and liabllities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31st
March 2023 and 31st March 2022. The fair value is

estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rate.

12. Capital management

The Authority’s capital management objectives are:

(a) to ensure the Authority’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

(b)  to achieve the Authority's goals.
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13. AREALTRS 13. Related party transactions
EFENREFHERRE A LPTET During the year the Authority undertook the following
HNHBEEERZUWT ! transactions with related parties in the normal course of its

operation:
2023 2022
B BT
HKS$ HK$

TEEEAEMIEAN  Remuneration for key management

personnel
ZRAE T1EF Short-term employee benefits 7,293,600 6,424,857
BEE B 27 Post-employment benefits 1,094,040 963,728
8,387,640 7,388,685
#EaBzEET A BT Ay (RMIEE Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 4).

4) o
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14.

ME RENFRESE & REEH
AR

TERFIVRERARETHELEE
BNES > SERERIFRTE
B MEEHELINEEAKRTR
EYARRRERER N IRERLIIR
TRERANNESMELTZRE

MENAR -

14. Reconciliation of liabilities arising

from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Authority’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Authority’s statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

2023 2022
BT BT
HK$ HK$
HESE () Lease liabilities (Note 9)
FHHEER Balance at beginning of the year 35,464,864 39,035,586
RMEEHZIREREE Changes from financing cash flows:
E2
EEEHEEZEAR  Capita element of lease rentals paid
I (5,377,328) (3,529,951)
EAHEEHEEZFE  Interest element of lease rentals paid
i) (215,847) (266,574)
29,871,689 35,239,061
Hih&s) Other changes:
SEERBZIAE  Recognition of lease liabilities during
=k the year 1,201,860
HEAENE Interest on lease liabilities 215,156 225,803
FRAEER Balance at end of the year 31,288,705 35,464,864
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15. BIAMHEMEARRIEKER 15.
& BMFERESEN
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(RN =G

(BEBGFTER]) B8R ET T
sHEETER

(BBEFER) F152ETRE
BNEARENIERE?

(BRMBHRSEL) B165kZE
] TERENZAER[E)2

! Ro023E1 B 1AHZ BB
FEHHIB AR

2 Rooca®E 1 B1ERZ BB
BHEARA K
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BUBREERREBG TR
ERTEHIRER M FBR&PHES
NERRELTEATE -

REXEER S, 2022-23

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued but not yet
effective for the year

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the current accounting
year and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following items which may be
relevant to the Authority.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates *

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current 2

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback 2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2024

The Authority anticipates that the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs and HKASs will not have a material effect on
the amounts recognized in the Authority’s financial statements.
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